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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
October 12, 2018
Board of Directors
Holland Board of Public Works
Holland, Michigan
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and each major
fund of the Holland Board of Public Works (the "Board"), enterprise funds of the City of Holland,
Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements
which collectively comprise the Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Independent Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund of the Board as of June
30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Reporting Entity
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements referred to above present only the Holland Board of
Public Works enterprise funds and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of
the City of Holland, Michigan as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in its financial position for the year
then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 75
As described in Note 13, the Board implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, in the current year.
Accordingly, beginning net position of business-type activities and each major fund was restated. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Board's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in
the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.
The management's discussion and analysis and the schedules for the pension and other postemployment
benefit plans as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 12,
2018 on our consideration of the Board’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board's internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

5

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛ƐŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶĂŶĚŶĂůǇƐŝƐ;hŶĂƵĚŝƚĞĚͿ
dŚŝƐƐĞĐƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŽĂƌĚŽĨWƵďůŝĐtŽƌŬƐĂŶŶƵĂůĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƌĞƉŽƌƚƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐĂŶŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁŽĨƚŚĞ
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚĞĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌƐĞŶĚŝŶŐ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϭϴĂŶĚϮϬϭϳ͘WůĞĂƐĞƌĞĂĚŝƚŝŶĐŽŶũƵŶĐƚŝŽŶ
ǁŝƚŚƚŚĞĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕ǁŚŝĐŚĨŽůůŽǁƚŚŝƐƐĞĐƚŝŽŶ͘
KsZs/tK&h^/E^^
dŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŽĂƌĚŽĨWƵďůŝĐtŽƌŬƐ;,WtͿ͕ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůůǇŽǁŶĞĚďǇƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐ͗
x ŶĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕ǁŚŝĐŚŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞƐĂŶĚĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞƐĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇƚŽϮϴ͕ϴϮϱƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů͕ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů
ĂŶĚ ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ŝƚǇ ŽĨ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ ĂŶĚ ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐ ŽĨ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕ WĂƌŬ͕ >ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶ ĂŶĚ
&ŝůůŵŽƌĞdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘,Wt͛ƐϭϳϭŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂůĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ;Ϭ͘ϬϲйŽĨƚŽƚĂůĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐͿĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ
ĨŽƌϱϯйŽĨƚŚĞĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐůŽĂĚŝŶŬŝůŽǁĂƚƚŚŽƵƌƐ͘
x ǁĂƚĞƌĨŝůƚƌĂƚŝŽŶƉůĂŶƚ͕ǁŝƚŚĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇƚŽƉƵƌŝĨǇϯϴ͘ϱŵŝůůŝŽŶŐĂůůŽŶƐƉĞƌĚĂǇ͘tĂƚĞƌŝƐƐŽůĚƚŽϭϯ͕ϲϲϬ
ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů͕ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůĂŶĚŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂůĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐůŽĐĂƚĞĚŝŶƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĂŶĚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐŽĨ
WĂƌŬ͕>ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶĂŶĚ,ŽůůĂŶĚŚĂƌƚĞƌdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘tĂƚĞƌŝƐĂůƐŽƐŽůĚŽŶĂǁŚŽůĞƐĂůĞďĂƐŝƐƚŽWĂƌŬ
dŽǁŶƐŚŝƉĂŶĚƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨĞĞůĂŶĚ͘tŚŽůĞƐĂůĞƐĂůĞƐƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂďŽƵƚϱϱйŽĨƚŚĞǁĂƚĞƌĨŝůƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ
ƉůĂŶƚŽƵƚƉƵƚ͘dŚĞ,WtƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐŝƚƐǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŵ>ĂŬĞDŝĐŚŝŐĂŶ͘
x ǁĂƚĞƌƌĞĐůĂŵĂƚŝŽŶĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͕ǁŝƚŚĂŶĂǀĞƌĂŐĞĚĂŝůǇƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇŽĨϭϮŵŝůůŝŽŶŐĂůůŽŶƐ͕ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ
ϭϮ͕ϱϳϱƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚŝĂů͕ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůĂŶĚŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂůĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐŝŶƚŚĞ ŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĂŶĚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐŽĨ
,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕WĂƌŬ͕>ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶĂŶĚ&ŝůůŵŽƌĞdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘dŚĞǁĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌŝƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚĨƌŽŵƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ
,ŽůůĂŶĚĂŶĚ&ŝůůŵŽƌĞ͕>ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶ͕WĂƌŬĂŶĚ,ŽůůĂŶĚŚĂƌƚĞƌdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘

&/EE/>,/',>/',d^
dŚĞŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŽĂƌĚŽĨWƵďůŝĐtŽƌŬƐŚĂƐŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚďǇϳ͘ϱйĨƌŽŵƚŚĞƉƌŝŽƌĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌ͘
EĞƚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ
;/ŶDŝůůŝŽŶƐͿ

ŽŶĚĞŶƐĞĚ&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚƐƐĞƚƐ
EŽŶĐƵƌƌĞŶƚĂƐƐĞƚƐ
ĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕ŶĞƚ
dŽƚĂůƐƐĞƚƐ
ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚŽƵƚĨůŽǁͲůŽƐƐŽŶƌĞĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ
ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚŽƵƚĨůŽǁŽĨƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐͲƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ
dŽƚĂůĞĨĞƌƌĞĚKƵƚĨůŽǁƐ
ƵƌƌĞŶƚůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
EŽŶĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
dŽƚĂů>ŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ
ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚŝŶĨůŽǁŽĨƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐͲƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ
ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚŝŶĨůŽǁͲŽƚŚĞƌƉŽƐƚĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚďĞŶĞĨŝƚ
dŽƚĂůĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ/ŶĨůŽǁƐ
EĞƚŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚŝŶĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ
ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ
hŶƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ
dŽƚĂůEĞƚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ

tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ
ϮϬϭϴ
ϮϬϭϳ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ΨϭϬϮ
ϯϱ
ϯϮϮ
ϰϱϵ

ΨϭϮϬ
Ϯϱ
ϯϭϯ
ϰϱϴ

Ψϭϱ
ϲ
ϲϭ
ϴϮ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
ϭ
ϭ

ϮϬ
ϭϲϯ
ϭϴϯ

dŽƚĂů

tĂƚĞƌ
ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

Ψϭϰ
ϱ
ϲϭ
ϴϬ

Ψϭϭ
ϰ
ϰϲ
ϲϮ

ΨϭϬ
ϰ
ϰϱ
ϱϵ

ΨϭϮϴ
ϰϱ
ϰϮϵ
ϲϬϮ

Ψϭϰϰ
ϯϰ
ϰϭϵ
ϱϵϳ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
ϭ
ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϯ
Ϯ

ϯϭ
ϭϳϮ
ϮϬϯ

Ϯ
ϭϭ
ϭϯ

ϯ
ϭϮ
ϭϱ

ϯ
ϭϮ
ϭϲ

ϯ
ϭϱ
ϭϴ

Ϯϱ
ϭϴϲ
Ϯϭϭ

ϯϳ
ϭϵϵ
Ϯϯϲ

ϭ
ϭ
Ϯ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

ϭ
ϭ
Ϯ

Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ

ϭϲϯ
ϯϱ
ϳϲ
ΨϮϳϰ

ϭϰϴ
Ϯϱ
ϴϯ
ΨϮϱϲ

ϱϮ
ϲ
ϭϭ
Ψϲϵ

ϱϮ
ϱ
ϴ
Ψϲϱ

ϯϰ
Ϯ
ϭϬ
Ψϰϲ

ϯϭ
Ϯ
ϵ
ΨϰϮ

Ϯϰϵ
ϰϯ
ϵϳ
Ψϯϴϵ

Ϯϯϭ
ϯϮ
ϭϬϬ
Ψϯϲϯ
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dŚĞĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƵŶŝŽŶǁĂŐĞƌĂƚĞƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚƚŽŵĂƌŬĞƚǁŝƚŚƚŚĞŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĂŶĞǁĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ
ǁŝƚŚ ƚŚĞ hƚŝůŝƚǇ tŽƌŬĞƌƐ hŶŝŽŶ ŽĨ ŵĞƌŝĐĂ͘ dŚĞ ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ ǁĂƐ ƌĞŶĞǁĞĚ ŝŶ Ɖƌŝů ϮϬϭϴ ĂŶĚ ǁŝůů ĞǆƉŝƌĞ ŝŶ
DĂƌĐŚϮϬϮϭ͘
dŚĞĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚĂƐƐĞƚƐĂŶĚĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚŽƵƚĨůŽǁƐŽĨƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐŽĨ,WtĞǆĐĞĞĚĞĚŝƚƐůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐĂŶĚĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ
ŝŶĨůŽǁƐŽĨƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐĂƚƚŚĞĐůŽƐĞŽĨƚŚĞŵŽƐƚƌĞĐĞŶƚĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌďǇΨϯϴϵ͘ϰD;ŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶͿ͘KĨƚŚŝƐĂŵŽƵŶƚ͕
Ψϵϲ͘ϴD ǁĂƐ ƵŶƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ ŶĞƚ ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ ŵĂǇ ďĞ ƵƐĞĚ ƚŽ ŵĞĞƚ ƚŚĞ ,Wt͛Ɛ ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ ƚŽ
ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ ĂŶĚ ĐƌĞĚŝƚŽƌƐ͘   ƐƵďƐƚĂŶƚŝĂů ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ,Wt͛Ɛ ŶĞƚ ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕ ΨϮϰϴ͘ϴD ;ϲϯ͘ϵ ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚͿ͕
ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐŝƚƐŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚŝŶĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ;Ğ͘Ő͕͘ůĂŶĚ͕ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ͕ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ͕ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚĂŶĚŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞͿ͕ůĞƐƐ
ĂŶǇƌĞůĂƚĞĚŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐĚĞďƚƵƐĞĚƚŽĂĐƋƵŝƌĞƚŚŽƐĞĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘,WtƵƐĞƐƚŚĞƐĞĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐƚŽƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐƚŽĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ͖ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ͕ƚŚĞƐĞĂƐƐĞƚƐĂƌĞŶŽƚĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞĨŽƌĨƵƚƵƌĞƐƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ͘
ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ,Wt͛ƐŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚŝŶŝƚƐĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚŶĞƚŽĨƌĞůĂƚĞĚĚĞďƚ͕ŝƚƐŚŽƵůĚďĞŶŽƚĞĚƚŚĂƚ
ƚŚĞƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐŶĞĞĚĞĚƚŽƌĞƉĂǇƚŚŝƐĚĞďƚŵƵƐƚďĞƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚĨƌŽŵŽƚŚĞƌƐŽƵƌĐĞƐƐŝŶĐĞƚŚĞĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ
ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐĐĂŶŶŽƚďĞƵƐĞĚƚŽůŝƋƵŝĚĂƚĞƚŚĞƐĞůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘ŶĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨ,Wt͛ƐŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶŽĨ
Ψϰϯ͘ϴD;ϭϭ͘ϮƉĞƌĐĞŶƚͿƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐƚŚĂƚĂƌĞƐƵďũĞĐƚƚŽĞǆƚĞƌŶĂůƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐŽŶŚŽǁƚŚĞǇŵĂǇďĞ
ƵƐĞĚ͗ ϳϮй ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ ƚŽ ĚĞďƚ͕ ϭϯй ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ ƚŽ ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ ŝŶ ũŽŝŶƚ ǀĞŶƚƵƌĞ͕ ϭϱй ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ ƚŽ ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ
ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚĨƵŶĚ͘
WĞŶƐŝŽŶĞǆƉĞŶƐĞǁĂƐƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇůŽǁĞƌƚŚĂŶŝŶƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐǇĞĂƌƐ͘WĞŶƐŝŽŶĞǆƉĞŶƐĞŝƐĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚĂƚĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌͲ
ĞŶĚǁŚĞŶƚŚĞĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůƌĞƉŽƌƚŝƐƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘WĞŶƐŝŽŶĨƵŶĚŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚďĞƚƚĞƌƚŚĂŶĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ
ǁŚŝĐŚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚƚŽƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐƚŚĞůŽŶŐƚĞƌŵůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘dŚĞƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶĨƌŽŵ&zϮϬϭϳŝƐĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇΨϭ͘ϬD͘
,Wt ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ ƚŚĞ ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ ŽĨ '^ ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ EŽ͘ ϳϱ͕ ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ ĂŶĚ &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ ĨŽƌ
WŽƐƚĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚĞŶĞĨŝƚƐKƚŚĞƌdŚĂŶWĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ͕ƚŚŝƐĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌ͘ƐĂƌĞƐƵůƚŽĨƚŚŝƐĐŚĂŶŐĞ͕ĨŝƐĐĂůǇĞĂƌϮϬϭϳ
ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ͕ǁĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ͕ǁĂƚĞƌƵƚŝůŝƚǇĂŶĚďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐͲƚǇƉĞĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ
ΨϮϳϮ͕ϱϲϰ͘
ZĞƐƵůƚƐŽĨKƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ
;/ŶDŝůůŝŽŶƐͿ
tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ
tĂƚĞƌ
ϮϬϭϴ
ϮϬϭϳ
ϮϬϭϴ
ϮϬϭϳ

ŽŶĚĞŶƐĞĚ&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ
KƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ
KƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ
EŽŶŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐŝŶĐŽŵĞ;ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐͿ͕ŶĞƚ
EĞƚ/ŶĐŽŵĞĞĨŽƌĞŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚdƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ
ĂƉŝƚĂůĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ
ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐƚŽĐŝƚǇ
ǆƚƌĂŽƌĚŝŶĂƌǇŝƚĞŵƐ
^ƉĞĐŝĂůŝƚĞŵ
ŚĂŶŐĞ/ŶEĞƚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ
ĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕ĂƐƌĞƐƚĂƚĞĚ
ŶĚŝŶŐEĞƚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ΨϭϭϬ
;ϳϴͿ
;ϱͿ
Ϯϳ
Ϭ
;ϲͿ
;ϮͿ
Ϭ
ϭϵ
Ϯϱϲ
ΨϮϳϰ

ΨϭϭϮ
;ϳϵͿ
ϭ
ϯϰ
Ϭ
;ϲͿ
;ϰͿ
Ϭ
Ϯϰ
ϮϯϮ
ΨϮϱϲ

ΨϭϮ
;ϭϭͿ
ϯ
ϰ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
ϰ
ϲϱ
Ψϲϵ

Ψϭϭ
;ϭϬͿ
Ϭ
ϭ
ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϯ
ϲϯ
Ψϲϱ

ΨϭϬ
;ϲͿ
Ϭ
ϰ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
ϰ
ϰϮ
Ψϰϲ

ΨϭϬ
;ϲͿ
Ϭ
ϰ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
Ϭ
ϰ
ϯϴ
ΨϰϮ

dŽƚĂů
ϮϬϭϴ
ΨϭϯϮ
;ϵϰͿ
;ϯͿ
ϯϰ
Ϭ
;ϲͿ
;ϮͿ
Ϭ
Ϯϳ
ϯϲϯ
Ψϯϴϵ

ϮϬϭϳ
Ψϭϯϯ
;ϵϱͿ
ϭ
ϯϵ
ϭ
;ϲͿ
;ϰͿ
Ϭ
ϯϬ
ϯϯϯ
Ψϯϲϯ 

dŚĞtĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌĂŶĚtĂƚĞƌƵƚŝůŝƚŝĞƐŚĂĚƌĂƚĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐŝŶ&zϮϬϭϴŽĨϰ͘ϵйĂŶĚϮ͘ϬйƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞůǇ͘ŽƐƚŽĨ
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐƚƵĚǇǁĂƐĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚĨŽƌƚŚĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐƵƚŝůŝƚǇĚƵƌŝŶŐ&zϮϬϭϳ͘dŚĞƌĞƐƵůƚƐǁĞƌĞƵƐĞĚƚŽƌĞĚĞƐŝŐŶƚŚĞ
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐƌĂƚĞƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞďǇĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƵƐĂŐĞĂŶĚůŽĂĚ͕ĂŶĚĨŝǆĞĚĨĞĞƐǁĞƌĞĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƚĞĚ͘dŚĞƐŝŵƉůŝĨŝĞĚƌĂƚĞ
ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞŚĂĚŶŽŶĞƚŝŵƉĂĐƚŽŶŽǀĞƌĂůůĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐĐŚĂƌŐĞƐƚŽĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ͘
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ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ͗
ͻ ,WtĞŶƚĞƌĞĚŝŶƚŽŵƵůƚŝƉůĞĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐƚŽĂĐƋƵŝƌĞ͕ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚ͕ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĂŶĚŝŶƐƚĂůůĂϭϮϱDtŶĂƚƵƌĂů
ŐĂƐĨŝƌĞĚĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚĐǇĐůĞƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚ͕ĂŶĚĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚĨĂĐŝůŝƚŝĞƐĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ͕ďǇƉĂƐƐĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ
ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͕ĂŶĚƐŝƚĞĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶĂŶĚŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘dŚĞƉƌŽũĞĐƚǁĂƐƐƵďƐƚĂŶƚŝĂůůǇĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ
ĂŶĚĐŽŶƚƌŽůŽĨƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶǁĂƐƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚƚŽ,WtŝŶ^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌϮϬϭϳ͘dŽƚĂůĐĂƉŝƚĂůŝǌĞĚĐŽƐƚƐ
ǁĞƌĞĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇΨϮϲϴ͘ϮD͘
ͻ dŚĞDŝĐŚŝŐĂŶWƵďůŝĐWŽǁĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ;DWWͿŚĂƐĞŶƚĞƌĞĚŝŶƚŽĂŵĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵŽĨƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ
ǁŝƚŚWĞŐĂƐƵƐtŝŶĚ͕>>ŝŶdƵƐĐŽůĂŽƵŶƚǇǁŚŝĐŚǁŝůůƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ,WtĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϯ͘ϱDtŽĨ
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůǁŝŶĚƉŽǁĞƌĂƚĂůĞǀĞůŝǌĞĚĐŽƐƚŽĨůĞƐƐƚŚĂŶΨϱϬ͘ϬϬͬDtŚŽǀĞƌƚŚĞϮϬǇĞĂƌƚĞƌŵŽĨƚŚĞ
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘dŚŝƐƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝƐĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚƚŽďĞŽŶůŝŶĞŝŶůĂƚĞĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌǇĞĂƌϮϬϭϴŽƌĞĂƌůǇϮϬϭϵ͘dŚĞ
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůϯ͘ϱDtŽĨǁŝŶĚĞŶĞƌŐǇǁŝůůƌĂŝƐĞ,Wt͛ƐƌĞŶĞǁĂďůĞĞŶĞƌŐǇƐƵƉƉůǇƚŽĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ
ϭϱйŽĨĂŶŶƵĂůĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐƐĂůĞƐĂƐǁĞůůĂƐĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĨǇƚŚĞĞŶĞƌŐǇƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽĂŶĚƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĂŚĞĚŐĞŽŶĨƵƚƵƌĞ
ĞŶĞƌŐǇƉƌŝĐĞƐ͘
ͻ ůĞĐƚƌŝĐƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶĐŽƐƚƐŽǀĞƌĂůůǁĞƌĞůŽǁĞƌƚŚĂŶďƵĚŐĞƚĞĚ͘EĂƚƵƌĂůŐĂƐƉƌŝĐĞƐǁĞƌĞůĞƐƐƚŚĂŶ
ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚƌĞƐƵůƚŝŶŐŝŶůŽǁĞƌŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĐŽƐƚƐ͘dŚĞŶĞǁƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚ͕,ŽůůĂŶĚŶĞƌŐǇWĂƌŬ;,WͿ
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ ŽƵƚƉƵƚ ǁŚĞŶ ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ ŵĂƌŐŝŶĂů ĐŽƐƚƐ ǁĞƌĞ ůĞƐƐ ƚŚĂŶ ƚŚĞ ŵĂƌŬĞƚ ĐŽƐƚƐ ŽĨ
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ ƉŽǁĞƌ͘  ZƵŶŶŝŶŐ ,W ŵŽƌĞ ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ ĐŽƐƚƐ ĚƵĞ ƚŽ ŵŽƌĞ ŐĂƐ
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞƐ͕ ďƵƚ ŝƚ ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ ƉŽǁĞƌ ĐŽƐƚƐ ĚƵĞ ƚŽ ďƵǇŝŶŐ ůĞƐƐ ƉŽǁĞƌ ĨƌŽŵ ƚŚĞ ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͘
dŽŐĞƚŚĞƌƚŚŝƐŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐŝŶĐŽŵĞďǇΨϱ͘ϯD͘
ͻ dŚĞƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶĂƐƐĞƚƐĂƚƚŚĞ:ĂŵĞƐĞǇŽƵŶŐ;:zͿĐŽĂůͲĨŝƌĞĚƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚǁĞƌĞƌĞƚŝƌĞĚŝŶ&zϮϬϭϳ͘
ƵƌŝŶŐ&zϮϬϭϴƐŽŵĞŽĨƚŚĞĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚĂŶĚƐƉĂƌĞƉĂƌƚƐŝŶǀĞŶƚŽƌǇǁĞƌĞĚŝƐƉŽƐĞĚƌĞƐƵůƚŝŶŐŝŶĂ
ĐŚĂƌŐĞŽĨΨϭ͘ϲD͘dŚŝƐĂŵŽƵŶƚŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚŝŶƚŚĞĞǆƚƌĂŽƌĚŝŶĂƌǇŝŶĐŽŵĞĂŶĚĞǆƉĞŶƐĞůŝŶĞŽŶƚŚĞ
^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚŽĨZĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ͕ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕ĂŶĚŚĂŶŐĞƐŝŶ&ƵŶĚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘
tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ͗
ͻ dŚĞƚĞƌƌŝƚŽƌǇƐĞƌǀĞĚďǇƚŚĞtĂƚĞƌZĞĐůĂŵĂƚŝŽŶ&ĂĐŝůŝƚǇ;tZ&ͿŝƐĂůƐŽĐĂůůĞĚĂƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĂƌĞĂ͘dŚĞ
ĂƌĞĂŶŽƌƚŚŽĨ>ĂŬĞDĂĐĂƚĂǁĂŝƐŬŶŽǁŶĂƐƚŚĞEŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƌĞĂ;E^ͿĂŶĚŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐ
ŽĨ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ ĂŶĚ WĂƌŬ ƚŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ ;ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ ĞĞůĂŶĚ dŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ ƉƌŝŽƌ ƚŽ ŝƚƐ ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂů ĨƌŽŵ ƚŚĞ
ƐǇƐƚĞŵŝŶEŽǀĞŵďĞƌϮϬϭϳͿ͘dŚĞĂƌĞĂƐŽƵƚŚŽĨ>ĂŬĞDĂĐĂƚĂǁĂŝƐŬŶŽǁŶĂƐƚŚĞ^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ƌĞĂ;^^Ϳ͘dŚĞ^^ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕>ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ͕&ŝůůŵŽƌĞdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ͕ĂŶĚƚŚĞ
ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĂŶĚWĂƌŬdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐƐŽƵƚŚŽĨƚŚĞůĂŬĞ͘dŚĞE^ĂŶĚ^^ĂƌĞĞĂĐŚĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚĂ
ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ŽǀĞƌĂůů tZ& ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ ǀŝĂ Ă ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ ƚŚĞ ŵĞŵďĞƌ ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚŝĞƐ͘
,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂůůǇ͕ƚŚĞƐĞƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶĂƚϳϬйĨŽƌƚŚĞ^^ĂŶĚϯϬйĨŽƌƚŚĞE^͘KǀĞƌŵĂŶǇ
ǇĞĂƌƐ͕ ƚŚĞ ĨůŽǁ ĂŶĚ ůŽĂĚŝŶŐƐ ĨƌŽŵ ƚŚĞ E^ ŚĂƐ ŐƌŽǁŶ ƚŽ ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ ϱϬй ŽĨ ƚŚĞ
ŝŶĨůƵĞŶƚ ĨůŽǁ ĂŶĚ ůŽĂĚŝŶŐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ tZ&͘ ŶǇ ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ ĂĐƚƵĂů ƵƐĂŐĞ ĂŶĚ ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ
ŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉŝƐƉĂŝĚƚŽƚŚĞŽƚŚĞƌƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĂƌĞĂŝŶƚŚĞĨŽƌŵŽĨƌĞŶƚĂůƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͘/Ŷ:ƵůǇ͕ƚŚĞE^ŵĂĚĞ
ĂƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƚŽƚŚĞ^^ĨŽƌƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞŽĨĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͘dŚĞĂŵŽƵŶƚ͕ΨϮ͘ϵD͕ŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚŝŶƚŚĞ
ŶŽŶŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐŝŶĐŽŵĞͬ;ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞͿƐĞĐƚŝŽŶŽŶƚŚĞ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚŽĨZĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ͕ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕ĂŶĚŚĂŶŐĞƐ
ŝŶ&ƵŶĚWŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘dŚĞtZ&&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ^ƵďĐŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĞŚŝƌĞĚĂĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƚŽƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞ
,ŽůůĂŶĚƌĞĂtĂƚĞƌZĞĐůĂŵĂƚŝŽŶ&ĂĐŝůŝƚǇ;tZ&ͿŝŶŽƌĚĞƌƚŽƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚƚŚĞŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚŶĞĞĚĞĚ
ĨƌŽŵ ƚŚĞ E^ ƚŽ ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ ƚŚĞ E^ ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ ŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ ƚŽ ϱϬй ĨƌŽŵ ϯϬй͘ dŚĞ ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ ƵƐĞĚ
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ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂůŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕ƌĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕ĂŶŶƵĂůĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐďĂƐĞĚŽŶĂĐƚƵĂůĨůŽǁƐ͕
ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚŝŶĐŽŵĞĂŶĚǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂůƐĨƌŽŵƚŚĞĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚĨƵŶĚƚŽĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĂŶĞǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ
ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚĞtZ&͘dŚĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƌĞƉŽƌƚƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞƐĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĨƌŽŵƚŚĞE^ƚŽ
ďƌŝŶŐŝƚƐĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇƚŽϱϬй͘dŚŝƐĐŚĂŶŐĞŝŶĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉŝƐĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚƚŽŐƌĞĂƚůǇƌĞĚƵĐĞĂŶĚͬŽƌ
ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚĞ ƌĞŶƚĂů ŝŶĐŽŵĞ ĨƌŽŵ ƚŚĞ E^ ĨŽƌ ƚŚĞ ĨŽƌĞƐĞĞĂďůĞ ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘  dŚĞ ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ ŝŶ
ƌĞŶƚĂůŝŶĐŽŵĞŝƐĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚĨŽƌŝŶƚŚĞ&zϮϬϭϵďƵĚŐĞƚ͘dŚĞĞĞůĂŶĚdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂůƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ
ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚǀŽůƵŵĞďǇĂďŽƵƚϰϬϬ͕ϬϬϬŐĂůůŽŶƐƉĞƌĚĂǇŽĨĨůŽǁŽƌĂďŽƵƚϰйŽĨƚŽƚĂůƉůĂŶƚĨůŽǁĂƚƚŚĞ
ƚŝŵĞ͘/ŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂůƉƌŽĐĞƐƐŝŶŐŝƐĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚƚŽŽĨĨƐĞƚŵƵĐŚŽĨƚŚŝƐĨůŽǁ͘
x ^ĞǁĂŐĞƐůƵĚŐĞ͕ĂďǇƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŽĨŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůǁĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ͕ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐƌĞŐƵůĂƌĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů͘dŚĞ
tZ& ĚŝƐƉŽƐĞƐ ŽĨ ƐůƵĚŐĞ ǀŝĂ Ă ĐŽŵďŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ůĂŶĚ ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ ůŝƋƵŝĚ ďŝŽƐŽůŝĚƐ ĂŶĚ ůĂŶĚĨŝůů
ĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽĨĚĞǁĂƚĞƌĞĚƐůƵĚŐĞ͘ŝŽƐŽůŝĚƐĂƌĞĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚŝĂƚĞĚĨƌŽŵƐůƵĚŐĞŝŶƚŚĂƚƚŚĞƐůƵĚŐĞŶĞĞĚƐ
ƚŽ ďĞ ƚƌĞĂƚĞĚ ĨŽƌ ƉĂƚŚŽŐĞŶ ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ ǀĞĐƚŽƌ ĂƚƚƌĂĐƚŝŽŶ ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ ŝŶ ŽƌĚĞƌ ƚŽ ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ ƚŚŝƐ
ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ͘  dŚŝƐ ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ ŝƐ ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ ŝŶ ŽƌĚĞƌ ƚŽ ŵĂŬĞ ƚŚĞ ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ ĨŽƌ
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂůƌĞƵƐĞĂƐĂĨĞƌƚŝůŝǌĞƌŽŶĂŐƌŝĐƵůƚƵƌĂůůĂŶĚ͘hŶŝƚƉƌŝĐĞƐĨŽƌůĂŶĚĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶŽĨďŝŽƐŽůŝĚƐĨƌŽŵ
ƚŚĞtZ&ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚĂďŽƵƚϲϱйŽǀĞƌ&zϮϬϭϳĐŽƐƚƐ͘dŚĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚĐŽƐƚǁĂƐĚƵĞƚŽƚŚĞůĂƌŐĞƐƚƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ĂƌĞĂ ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ ŵĂƌŬĞƚ ĂŶĚ Ă ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ ŽĨ ůĂŶĚ
;ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ŚĂƵůĞƌƐ ƚŽ ƚƌĂǀĞů ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌͿ͘  ŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐůǇ͕ ƵŶŝƚ ƉƌŝĐĞƐ ĨŽƌ ůĂŶĚĨŝůů ĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů ŽĨ
ĚĞǁĂƚĞƌĞĚ ƐůƵĚŐĞ ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ ĂƌŽƵŶĚ ϮϮй ŽǀĞƌ &zϮϬϭϳ ĐŽƐƚƐ͘  &Žƌ &zϮϬϭϵ ĂŶĚ ďĞǇŽŶĚ͕ ,Wt
ĞǆƉĞĐƚƐƚŽďĞĂďůĞƚŽĚŝƐƉŽƐĞŽĨĂŵĂǆŝŵƵŵŽĨϭϬ͕ϬϬϬǁĞƚƚŽŶƐƉĞƌǇĞĂƌƚŽůĂŶĚĨŝůů͘,WtŚĂƵůĞĚ
ϭϴ͕ϭϯϵǁĞƚƚŽŶƐŽĨƐůƵĚŐĞƚŽůĂŶĚĨŝůůŝŶ&zϮϬϭϳ͖ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞƚŚĞůŝŵŝƚĂƚŝŽŶƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐĂďŽƵƚĂϰϱй
ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶǀĞƌƐƵƐǁŚĂƚǁĂƐĚŝƐƉŽƐĞĚŽĨƚŽůĂŶĚĨŝůůŝŶ&zϮϬϭϳ͘dŚĞĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽƉƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚ
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ ĐŽƐƚƐ ŚĂǀĞ ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ ŶĞǁ ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ ƌŝƐŬƐ ĨŽƌ ƚŚĞ ƵƚŝůŝƚǇ ůĞĂĚŝŶŐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ ĐƌĞĂƚŝŽŶ ŽĨ Ă
ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƚĂĐƚŝĐĂůĂĐƚŝŽŶƚĞĂŵŝŶ&zϮϬϭϴƚŽĂĚĚƌĞƐƐƚŚĞŝƐƐƵĞ͘dŚĞƚĞĂŵĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚǁŝƚŚĂŶŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ
ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐĨŝƌŵƚŽĂƐƐŝƐƚŝŶĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶŝŶŐƚŚĞďĞƐƚŽƉƚŝŽŶƐĨŽƌĚĞĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐƚŚĞƐĞŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂůĂŶĚ
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƌŝƐŬƐ͘dŚĞĨŝŶĂůƌĞƉŽƌƚǁĂƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚƚŽŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚŝŶ:ƵŶĞĂŶĚŚĂƐƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚŝŶĂĨŽůůŽǁͲ
ƵƉƚĂĐƚŝĐĂůĂĐƚŝŽŶĨŽƌ&zϮϬϭϵƚŽƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĂƉƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌǇĚĞƐŝŐŶƌĞƉŽƌƚĨŽƌĂŶĂĞƌŽďŝĐĚŝŐĞƐƚŝŽŶĂƚƚŚĞ
ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͘  dŚĂƚ ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞ ŝƐ ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ ƚŽ ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ ƚŚĞ ƚŽƚĂů ƐůƵĚŐĞ ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ ĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů ďǇ
ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϰϬͲϱϬйǁŚŝĐŚǁŽƵůĚŝŶƚƵƌŶŚĞůƉƚŽŵŝƚŝŐĂƚĞƌŝƐŬĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚǁŝƚŚĨƵƚƵƌĞĚŝƐƉŽƐĂů
ƉƌŝĐĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐĂŶĚͬŽƌĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚĚŝƐƉŽƐĂůŽƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘dŚĞĚŝŐĞƐƚĞƌŝƐĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƚŽĐŽƐƚΨϭϴͲΨϮϬD͕
ǁŝƚŚƚŚĞĐŽƐƚƐŚĂƌĞĚĞƋƵĂůůǇďǇƚŚĞEŽƌƚŚĞƌŶĂŶĚ^ŽƵƚŚĞƌŶ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƌĞĂƐ͘
tĂƚĞƌ͗
x ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ͕ĐŽƐƚŝŶŐΨϭϮϭ͕ϬϬϬ͕ǁĂƐƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚŝŶ&zϮϬϭϴŽŶƚŚĞϯϲͲŝŶĐŚƚƌĂŶƐŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ
ŵĂŝŶ;ƉŝƉĞůŝŶĞͿƚŚĂƚƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŵƚŚĞtĂƚĞƌdƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚWůĂŶƚƚŽƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨĞĞůĂŶĚĂŶĚ
ƚŽƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐǇƐƚĞŵĂŶĚĚŽǁŶƚŽǁŶďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͘ƐƚŚĞŵĂŝŶƐŽƵƌĐĞŽĨ
ƉŽƚĂďůĞǁĂƚĞƌĨŽƌƚŚĞƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚƚŚŝƐŝƐĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚĂĐƌŝƚŝĐĂůĂƐƐĞƚ͘dŚĞŵĂŝŶƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞĚĂĨĂŝůƵƌĞĂŶĚƌĞƉĂŝƌĐŽƐƚƐŽĨĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇΨϭϭϱ͕ϬϬϬŝŶ&zϮϬϭϳ͘dŚĞƌĞŝƐĂŶĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ
ĐĂƉŝƚĂů ďƵĚŐĞƚ ŽĨ Ψϲ͘ϱD ĨŽƌ ƚŚĞ ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ ŽĨ ƚŚŝƐ ϯϲͲŝŶĐŚ ƚƌĂŶƐŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ ŵĂŝŶ ĂůŽŶŐ ǁŝƚŚ
ŝŶƐƚĂůůĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĂƌĞĚƵŶĚĂŶƚŵĂŝŶƚŽĂǀŽŝĚĨƵƚƵƌĞĚŝƐƌƵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘


9

W/d>^^d^
,WtŚĂƐΨϲϴϮ͘ϳDŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚŝŶĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ;ΨϰϮϵ͘ϭDŶĞƚŽĨĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶͿ͘dŚĞĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕ŶĞƚŽĨ
ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ͕ ďǇ ƵƚŝůŝƚǇ ĂƌĞ͗ ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ hƚŝůŝƚǇ ΨϯϮϮ͘ϮD͕ tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ hƚŝůŝƚǇ ΨϲϬ͘ϴD͖ ĂŶĚ tĂƚĞƌ hƚŝůŝƚǇ
Ψϰϲ͘ϭD͘ĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐŝŶĐůƵĚĞƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ͕ƉůĂŶƚĂŶĚĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚĂŶĚĂƌĞĚĞĨŝŶĞĚďǇ,WtĂƐĂƐƐĞƚƐǁŝƚŚ
ĂŶŝŶŝƚŝĂůŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůĐŽƐƚŽĨŵŽƌĞƚŚĂŶΨϱ͕ϬϬϬĂŶĚĂŶĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚƵƐĞĨƵůůŝĨĞŝŶĞǆĐĞƐƐŽĨƚŚƌĞĞǇĞĂƌƐ͘
ŽŶĚĞŶƐĞĚ&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ
>ĂŶĚ
ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶŝŶƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ
ĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕ŶĞƚ
dŽƚĂůĂƉŝƚĂůƐƐĞƚƐ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ΨϮϮ
ϭ
Ϯϵϵ
ΨϯϮϮ

ΨϮϭ
ϮϬϰ
ϴϴ
Ψϯϭϯ

ĂƉŝƚĂůƐƐĞƚƐ
;/ŶDŝůůŝŽŶƐͿ
tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ
tĂƚĞƌ
ϮϬϭϴ
ϮϬϭϳ
ϮϬϭϴ
ϮϬϭϳ
Ϭ
ϭ
ϲϬ
Ψϲϭ

Ϭ
Ϯ
ϱϵ
Ψϲϭ

ΨϮ
Ϯ
ϰϮ
Ψϰϲ

ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶŽŶƚŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŽĂƌĚŽĨWƵďůŝĐtŽƌŬƐĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚƐĐĂŶďĞĨŽƵŶĚŝŶŶŽƚĞϯ͘

ΨϮ
ϭ
ϰϮ
Ψϰϱ

dŽƚĂů
ϮϬϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ΨϮϰ
ϰ
ϰϬϭ
ΨϰϮϵ

ΨϮϯ
ϮϬϳ
ϭϴϵ
Ψϰϭϵ



ĂƉŝƚĂůĂƐƐĞƚĂĐƚŝǀŝƚǇĨŽƌƚŚĞĐƵƌƌĞŶƚǇĞĂƌŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ͗
ůĞĐƚƌŝĐ͗
ͻ dŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŶĞƌŐǇWĂƌŬ;,WͿĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚĐǇĐůĞƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚƚŽƚĂůĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐŽĨ
ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇΨϮϲϴ͘ϮD͘
ͻ ^ŶŽǁŵĞůƚƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ͕ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐĂŶĚĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐǁĞƌĞΨϴ͘ϳD͘
ͻ ŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐĂŶĚĞǆƚĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ͖ΨϮ͘ϮD͘
ͻ ^ƵďƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƵƉŐƌĂĚĞƐ͖Ψϴϴϭ͕ϱϬϬ͘
ͻ hƉŐƌĂĚŝŶŐƐƚƌĞĞƚůŝŐŚƚƐƚŽ>͖ΨϰϳϮ͕ϯϳϮ͘
ͻ ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ ďĞŐĂŶ ŽŶ ŶĞǁ ĨŝďĞƌ ŽƉƚŝĐ ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ ƚŽ ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ ^ŚĂƌĞĚ 'ŝŐĂďŝƚ ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ ƚŽ
ĚŽǁŶƚŽǁŶ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͘dŚƌŽƵŐŚ&zϮϬϭϴ͕ƚŚĞƉƌŽũĞĐƚŚĂƐŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚĐŽƐƚŽĨΨϴϴϴ͕ϲϱϮĂŶĚĂĚĚĞĚϴϭ
ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ͘
tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ͗
ͻ dŚĞtĂƚĞƌZĞĐůĂŵĂƚŝŽŶ&ĂĐŝůŝƚǇŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚΨϰϬϵ͕ϯϰϴŝŶŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϱϬйŽĨƚŚĞ
ĐĂƉŝƚĂů ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ ŝƐ ƐŚĂƌĞĚ ǁŝƚŚ ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐ ŽĨ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕ WĂƌŬ͕ >ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶ ĂŶĚ &ŝůůŵŽƌĞ
dŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘dŚĞŽƚŚĞƌϱϬйǁĂƐĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚďǇƚŚĞEŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƌĞĂĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚĂďŽǀĞ͘
ͻ ^ĞǁĞƌŵĂŝŶƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͖Ψϭ͘ϯD͘
ͻ >ŝĨƚƐƚĂƚŝŽŶŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐĂŶĚƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͖Ψϴϳϲ͕ϰϬϵ͘
tĂƚĞƌ͗
x tĂƚĞƌŵĂŝŶƐƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͖ΨϮ͘ϯD͘
x EĞǁƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƚŽ,W͖ΨϮϯϳ͕ϯϲϳ͘
x tĂƚĞƌdƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚWůĂŶƚŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͖Ψϭϴϴ͕ϴϱϮ͘
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^hDDZzK&d
,WtŚĂƐĂƚŽƚĂůŽĨΨϭϴϲ͘ϳDŝŶŝŶƐƚĂůůŵĞŶƚĚĞďƚŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐĂƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϭϴ͘
dŚĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐhƚŝůŝƚǇŚĂƐĂƚŽƚĂůŽĨΨϭϱϰ͘ϮDŝŶĚĞďƚŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐĂƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϭϴ͘dŚĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐhƚŝůŝƚǇ
ŝƐƐƵĞĚϮϱǇĞĂƌƌĞǀĞŶƵĞďŽŶĚƐŝŶ&zϮϬϭϰŝŶƚŚĞĂŵŽƵŶƚŽĨΨϭϱϴ͕ϴϰϬ͕ϬϬϬĨŽƌƚŚĞŶĞǁƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͕
ǁŝƚŚĂƚƌƵĞŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĐŽƐƚŽĨϰ͘Ϭϲй͘dŚŝƐĚĞďƚǁŝůůďĞƉĂŝĚŽĨĨŝŶ:ƵůǇ͕ϮϬϯϵ͘
dŚĞtĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌhƚŝůŝƚǇŚĂƐĂƚŽƚĂůŽĨΨϴ͘ϳDŝŶĚĞďƚŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐƚŽKƚƚĂǁĂŽƵŶƚǇĨŽƌƚŚĞĐŽƐƚŽĨĂĐƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ
ĂŶĚĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŶŐĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ;ďŝŽƐŽůŝĚƐŚĂŶĚůŝŶŐĂŶĚƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐͿĂƚƚŚĞ
,ŽůůĂŶĚƌĞĂtĂƚĞƌZĞĐůĂŵĂƚŝŽŶ&ĂĐŝůŝƚǇ͘dŚŝƐƉůĂŶƚƐĞƌǀĞƐƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĂŶĚƉŽƌƚŝŽŶƐŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕
WĂƌŬ͕>ĂŬĞƚŽǁŶĂŶĚ&ŝůůŵŽƌĞdŽǁŶƐŚŝƉƐ͘
dŚĞtĂƚĞƌhƚŝůŝƚǇŚĂƐŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐĚĞďƚŽĨΨϭϮ͘ϯD͘ůůŽĨƚŚĞtĂƚĞƌhƚŝůŝƚǇ͛ƐŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐĚĞďƚǁŝůůƉĂŝĚďǇ
Ɖƌŝůϭ͕ϮϬϯϮ͘dŚĞďŽŶĚƐǁĞƌĞŝƐƐƵĞĚĨŽƌƚŚĞƉƵƌƉŽƐĞŽĨĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŶŐĂŶĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇŝŶƚĞƌĐŽŶŶĞĐƚŝŽŶǁŝƚŚ
ƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨtǇŽŵŝŶŐ͛ƐǁĂƚĞƌƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘
/ŶϮϬϭϲ͕WĞŶƐŝŽŶŽŶĚƐǁĞƌĞŝƐƐƵĞĚďǇƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚĨŽƌΨϮϱ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬǁŝƚŚŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚƌĂƚĞƐƌĂŶŐŝŶŐ
ĨƌŽŵϬ͘ϳϲйƚŽϯ͘ϰϮй͘dŚĞƐĞďŽŶĚƐǁĞƌĞŝƐƐƵĞĚĨŽƌƚŚĞƉƵƌƉŽƐĞŽĨĨƵŶĚŝŶŐĂƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞĐŽƐƚƐŽĨƚŚĞ
ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇŽĨƚŚĞŝƚǇ͛ƐĚĞĨŝŶĞĚďĞŶĞĨŝƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶƉůĂŶĨŽƌŐĞŶĞƌĂůĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐĂŶĚƚŽƉĂǇ
ĐŽƐƚƐŽĨŝƐƐƵĂŶĐĞŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚǁŝƚŚƌĞƐƉĞĐƚƚŽƚŚĞŽŶĚƐ͘,Wt͛ƐƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞďŽŶĚŝƐΨϭϭ͘ϱD;ϱϲ͘ϯϲйŽĨ
ƚŚĞƚŽƚĂůͿĂƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϭϴ͘
ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶŽŶƚŚĞ,Wt͛ƐůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵĚĞďƚĐĂŶďĞĨŽƵŶĚŝŶŶŽƚĞϰ͘
'EZ>KEKD/KE/d/KE
dŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŶĞƌŐǇWĂƌŬΡǁĂƐĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚŝŶKĐƚŽďĞƌϮϬϭϳ͘/ƚŝƐƚŚĞůĂƌŐĞƐƚƉƵďůŝĐǁŽƌŬƐƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŶ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕
DŝĐŚŝŐĂŶŚŝƐƚŽƌǇĂŶĚƚŚĞĨŝƌƐƚƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚƉƌŽũĞĐƚƚŽƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƚŚĞ/ŶƐƚŝƚƵƚĞĨŽƌ^ƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͛Ɛ
ŶǀŝƐŝŽŶΠ WůĂƚŝŶƵŵ ĂǁĂƌĚ͕ ǁŚŝĐŚ ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞƐ ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ ƉƵďůŝĐ ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͘  /ƚ ŝƐ Ă ƐƚĂƚĞͲŽĨͲƚŚĞͲĂƌƚ
ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚͲĐǇĐůĞŶĂƚƵƌĂůŐĂƐͲĨŝƌĞĚƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚƚŚĂƚŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐĂƚŶĞĂƌůǇƚǁŝĐĞƚŚĞĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇŽĨƚŚĞĐŽĂůƉůĂŶƚ
ŝƚƌĞƉůĂĐĞĚ͘dŚĞǁĂƐƚĞŚĞĂƚĨƌŽŵƚŚĞƉůĂŶƚĂůƐŽĂůůŽǁƐƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŝƚǇ͛ƐƐŶŽǁŵĞůƚƐǇƐƚĞŵ
ǁŝƚŚŶŽĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂďůĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐĐŽƐƚƐ͘dŚĞƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐƚŚĞ,WtĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇǁŝƚŚĂ
ŶĞǁ͕ĐůĞĂŶĞƌƐŽƵƌĐĞŽĨďĂƐĞůŽĂĚƉŽǁĞƌ͘
ƵƚƚŝŶŐƚŚƌŽƵŐŚƚŚĞĐĞŶƚĞƌŽĨ,ŽůůĂŶĚŶĞƌŐǇWĂƌŬΡ͕ƚŚĞ͞ƌĞĚƐƉŝŶĞ͟ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐƚŚĞǀŝƐŝƚŽƌĐĞŶƚĞƌ͘dŚĞǀŝƐŝƚŽƌ
ĐĞŶƚĞƌŝƐĂŶŝŶƚĞƌĂĐƚŝǀĞƐƉĂĐĞĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚƚŽƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĞĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶĂďŽƵƚĞŶĞƌŐǇĂƚŚŽŵĞĂŶĚŝŶƚŚĞĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘
dŚĞƐƉŝŶĞĂůƐŽĨƵŶĐƚŝŽŶƐĂƐĂƐĐŝĞŶĐĞŵƵƐĞƵŵǁŝƚŚĂŶƵŵďĞƌŽĨŝŶƚĞƌĂĐƚŝǀĞĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐĂŶĚĂŐůĂƐƐǁĂůůǁŚĞƌĞ
ƚŚĞƉƵďůŝĐĐĂŶǀŝĞǁƚŚĞŝŶƚĞƌŝŽƌŽĨĂŶŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚ͘/ƚĐŽŶƚĂŝŶƐĞǆŚŝďŝƚƐĂŶĚƚŽƵĐŚͲƐĐƌĞĞŶƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ
ƚŚĂƚƚĞĂĐŚƚŚĞƉƵďůŝĐŚŽǁƚŚĞƉůĂŶƚŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐ͘sŝƐŝƚŽƌƐĐĂŶĂůƐŽƉůĂǇĂŐĂŵĞƚŽĐƌĞĂƚĞĂŶĞŶĞƌŐǇͲĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶƚ
ŚŽŵĞ͘dŚĞƐƉĂĐĞŝƐŽƉĞŶƚŽŐƌŽƵƉƐŽĨϭϱŽƌŵŽƌĞĨŽƌƐĞůĨͲŐƵŝĚĞĚƚŽƵƌƐ͘'ƌŽƵƉƐĐĂŶƌĞƋƵĞƐƚǀŝƐŝƚƐƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ
ƚŚĞ,Wt͛ƐǁĞďƐŝƚĞ͘
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,WtŝƐĨŽƌĞĐĂƐƚŝŶŐŐƌŽǁƚŚŝŶĚĞŵĂŶĚĨŽƌĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐŝƚǇŝŶŝƚƐƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĂƌĞĂŽĨϭ͘ϱйĨŽƌ&zϮϬϭϵĂŶĚĂŶĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ
Ϭ͘ϴйĨŽƌ&zϮϬϮϬͲ&zϮϬϮϯ͘dŚĞƌĞĂƌĞŶŽǀŽůƵŵĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐĨŽƌĞĐĂƐƚĞĚĨŽƌƚŚĞtĂƚĞƌŽƌtĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌƵƚŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘

ĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐƚŽƚŚĞϮϬϭϳƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ/ŶƚĞůůŝŐĞŶĐĞZĞƉŽƌƚ͕ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚďǇ>ĂŬĞƐŚŽƌĞĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞ;ĂtĞƐƚDŝĐŚŝŐĂŶ
ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞƌͿƚŚĞǀŝďƌĂŶƚůŽĐĂůĞĐŽŶŽŵǇŚĂƐĐƌĞĂƚĞĚƐŽŵĞŝƐƐƵĞƐ͗
x ϳϲйŽĨůŽĐĂůĐŽŵƉĂŶŝĞƐĂƌĞĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐŝŶŐƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŝŶŐŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘
x ǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇŽĨƐŬŝůůĞĚƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂůĂŶĚƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ͘ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌƐĂŶĚƐŬŝůůĞĚƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ
ůĂďŽƌĂƌĞƚŚĞŚŝŐŚĞƐƚĚĞŵĂŶĚĂƌĞĂƐ͕
x tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ;ϰϵйŽĨůŽĐĂůĐŽŵƉĂŶŝĞƐĂƌĞĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐŝŶŐƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŝŶŐŝƐƐƵĞƐͿ͘

^ĞǀĞƌĂůůŽĐĂůĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐǁĞƌĞŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁĞĚĚƵƌŝŶŐƚŚĞ:ĂŶƵĂƌǇϮϬϭϴŵĞĞƚŝŶŐŽĨƚŚĞtĞƐƚŽĂƐƚŚĂŵďĞƌ
ŽĨŽŵŵĞƌĐĞƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐƚĂůĞŶƚĂƚƚƌĂĐƚŝŽŶ͘dŚĞĐŽŵŵŽŶƚŚĞŵĞǁĂƐƚŚĂƚŝƚǁĂƐĚŝĨĨŝĐƵůƚƚŽŽďƚĂŝŶƚŚĞƚĂůĞŶƚ
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐŶĞĞĚĞĚ͘dŚĞƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇƚŚĂƚŚĂƐďĞĞŶƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵůĨŽƌůŽĐĂůĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐŝƐŐƌŽǁŝŶŐƚĂůĞŶƚĨƌŽŵǁŝƚŚŝŶ
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚĂƉƉƌĞŶƚŝĐĞƐŚŝƉƐ͕ƉĂƌƚͲƚŝŵĞǁŽƌŬͬĐŽůůĞŐĞĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐĨŽƌŚŝŐŚƐĐŚŽŽůŐƌĂĚƵĂƚĞƐĂŶĚůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ
ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ͘  ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ ĂƌĞ ĂůƐŽ ĨŝŶĚŝŶŐ ƚŚĂƚ ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞ ǁŽƌŬ ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ ŚĞůƉ ƌĞƚĂŝŶ ĂŶĚ ĂƚƚƌĂĐƚ
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐƚŚĂƚĐĂŶŶŽƚǁŽƌŬƚŚĞƚƌĂĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůǁŽƌŬŚŽƵƌƐ͘

,Wt͕ůŝŬĞŝƚƐĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ͕ĨĂĐĞƐƚŚĞƐĂŵĞĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞƐǁŝƚŚƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŝŶŐĂŶĚƌĞƚĂŝŶŝŶŐƋƵĂůŝĨŝĞĚƐƚĂĨĨ͘ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌƐ
ĂŶĚƐŬŝůůĞĚƉƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶůĂďŽƌĐŽŵƉƌŝƐĞƚŚĞďƵůŬŽĨ,Wt͛ƐĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƉŽŽů͘,WtƵƐĞĚĂĐŽŶƐƵůƚŝŶŐƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ
ĂŶĚŵĂƌŬĞƚƚƌĞŶĚƐƚŽĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞĂŶĚĂŶĂůǇǌĞĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶƚƌĞŶĚƐĨŽƌƚŚĞĂƌĞĂ͘tĂŐĞĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐĂŶĚũŽď
ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶĐŚĂŶŐĞƐǁĞƌĞŵĂĚĞƚŽƌĞŵĂŝŶĐŽŵƉĞƚŝƚŝǀĞ͘dŚĞĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚǁŝƚŚƚŚĞhƚŝůŝƚǇtŽƌŬĞƌƐhŶŝŽŶŽĨ
ŵĞƌŝĐĂ ǁĂƐ ƌĞŶĞǁĞĚ ŝŶ Ɖƌŝů ĂŶĚ ǁŝůů ĞǆƉŝƌĞ ŝŶ DĂƌĐŚ ϮϬϮϭ͘ /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ ŝŶ ŝŶƚĞƌŶͬƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ
ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞƐ͕ĂŶĚƐƚĂĨĨŝŶŐĐŽƐƚƐĂƌĞĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚƚŽŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ͘

/Ŷ&zϮϬϭϴ͕ĂƚĂĐƚŝĐĂůĂĐƚŝŽŶ;dͿƚĞĂŵŵĞƚƚŽƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇƌĞǀŝĞǁŽĨƚŚĞĂŐŝŶŐϭϴĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐǀĞŚŝĐůĞ
ĐŚĂƌŐŝŶŐ ƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ ŽǁŶĞĚ ďǇ ,Wt ĂŶĚ ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ ƚŚĞ ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ ƚĞƌƌŝƚŽƌǇ͘  dŚĞ ƚĞĂŵ͛Ɛ
ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ ǁĂƐ ƚŽ ĂƐƐŝŐŶ ĐŽŶƚƌŽů ĂŶĚ ŽǁŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ ĐŚĂƌŐŝŶŐ ƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ ƚŽ ƚŚĞ ŽǁŶĞƌƐ ŽĨ ƚŚĞ
ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ ǁŚĞƌĞ ƚŚĞ ƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ ĂƌĞ ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ͘  dŚĞ ƚĞĂŵ ĂůƐŽ ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ Ă ŶĞǁ ƌĞďĂƚĞ ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ ĨŽƌ
ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚŝĂůĂŶĚĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůĐŚĂƌŐĞƌƐƚŽĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞŵŽƌĞĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌͲŽǁŶĞĚĐŚĂƌŐĞƌŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ͘ŶĞƌŐǇ
ĐŽŶƐƵŵĞĚďǇĐŚĂƌŐŝŶŐƐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐŝƐĂƉŽƚĞŶƚŝĂůŐƌŽǁƚŚĂƌĞĂ͕ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚŽŶŚŽǁƋƵŝĐŬůǇĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ;sͿ
ƉĞŶĞƚƌĂƚĞƚŚĞĂƵƚŽŵŽƚŝǀĞŵĂƌŬĞƚ͘hƐŝŶŐƚĂƌŐĞƚĞĚŝŶĐĞŶƚŝǀĞƐƐƵĐŚĂƐƚŝŵĞͲŽĨͲƵƐĞƌĂƚĞƐ͕ƚŚŝƐŐƌŽǁƚŚĂƌĞĂ͕
ĐĂŶďĞŵĂŶĂŐĞĚƚŽĨŝůůŝŶůŽǁůŽĂĚƚŝŵĞƐĂŶĚƐŚĂǀĞŽĨĨƉĞĂŬƐ͘dŚĞsdƚĞĂŵƌĞŵĂŝŶƐĂĐƚŝǀĞŝŶ&zϮϬϭϵ͘
dŚĞƚĞĂŵǁŝůůŵĞĞƚƉĞƌŝŽĚŝĐĂůůǇ͕ǁŝůůŵŽŶŝƚŽƌĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐŽĨsĂŶĚĐŚĂƌŐŝŶŐƐƚĂƚŝŽŶŵĂƌŬĞƚƐĂŶĚďĞ
ĂďůĞƚŽƐƵŐŐĞƐƚƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇĐŚĂŶŐĞƐĨŽƌ,Wt͘

dŚĞ ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐĞ ŽĨ ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐĂů ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ ƉŽǁĞƌ ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶ ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞƐ ŝƐ ĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ ƚŚĞ ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů
ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ,WtŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐŝŶ͘ ZĂƚĞƐĨŽƌǀĞƌǇůĂƌŐĞŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĂů ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐŚĂǀĞďĞĞŶ ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ ƚŽ
ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ͘/ƚŝƐƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚƚŚĂƚĨƵƌƚŚĞƌƌĂƚĞĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞƐǁŝůůďĞŵĂĚĞŝŶƚŚĞŶĞĂƌĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘
d ƚĞĂŵ ǁŝůů ďĞ ĨŽƌŵĞĚ ŝŶ &zϮϬϭϵ ƚŽ ĐƌĞĂƚĞ ƐŚŽƌƚ ĂŶĚ ůŽŶŐ ƚĞƌŵ ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ ƚŽ ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ
ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƚŚƌŽƵŐŚƌĂƚĞƉŽůŝĐǇ͘dŚĞƚĞĂŵǁŝůůĐŽŶĨŝƌŵ,Wt͛ƐĐƵƌƌĞŶƚŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚƉƌŽƉŽƐĞ,Wt͛Ɛ
ƌŽůĞŝŶƚŚĞĚĞƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚŽĨĨƵƚƵƌĞĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘
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ĂƚƚĞƌǇĂƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐĂƌĞĂŶĞŵĞƌŐŝŶŐƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇƚŚĂƚĐŽƵůĚŽĨĨĞƌďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐĨŽƌƚŚĞĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌĂŶĚƚŚĞƵƚŝůŝƚǇ͘
dŽŐĂŝŶĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞǁŝƚŚďĂƚƚĞƌǇƐƚŽƌĂŐĞĐĂƉĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕ĂdƚĞĂŵǁŝůůďĞĨŽƌŵĞĚŝŶ&zϮϬϭϵƚŽĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞƵƚŝůŝƚǇ
ƐĐĂůĞďĂƚƚĞƌǇƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ͕ĂŶĚĚĞĨŝŶĞƚŚĞďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐĨŽƌĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐĂŶĚƚŚĞ,Wt͘

dŚĞĐŝƚǇŽĨ&ůŝŶƚ͕DŝĐŚŝŐĂŶ͕ƐƵĨĨĞƌĞĚĂǁĂƚĞƌƋƵĂůŝƚǇĐƌŝƐŝƐŝŶǀŽůǀŝŶŐůĞĂĚĐŽŶƚĂŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶŽĨĚƌŝŶŬŝŶŐǁĂƚĞƌ
ǁŚŝĐŚƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚŶĂƚŝŽŶǁŝĚĞƉƵďůŝĐŝƚǇ͘dŚĞDŝĐŚŝŐĂŶĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚŽĨŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂůYƵĂůŝƚǇŝƐƐƵĞĚĂŶĞǁ
ƌƵůĞŝŶ:ƵŶĞϮϬϭϴ͕ĚƌŽƉƉŝŶŐƚŚĞƐƚĂƚĞ͛ƐĂůůŽǁĞĚůĞĂĚůĞǀĞůŝŶĚƌŝŶŬŝŶŐǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŵϭϱƉĂƌƚƐƉĞƌďŝůůŝŽŶƚŽϭϮ
ƉĂƌƚƐƉĞƌďŝůůŝŽŶďǇϮϬϮϱ͘/ƚĂůƐŽƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐƵƚŝůŝƚŝĞƐƚŽƉĂǇĨŽƌůĞĂĚƐĞƌǀŝĐĞůŝŶĞƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚĂƚĂůůŚŽŵĞƐŝŶ
DŝĐŚŝŐĂŶ ǁŝƚŚŝŶ ƚŚĞ ŶĞǆƚ ϮϬ ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ ƚ ůĞĂƐƚ ϱ ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ ŽĨ ƉŝƉĞƐ ŵƵƐƚ ďĞ ƌĞƉůĂĐĞĚ ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ͘  ,Wt ŚĂƐ
ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ Ϯ͕ϬϬϬ ůĞĂĚ ŐŽŽƐĞŶĞĐŬƐ ǁŝƚŚ ŐĂůǀĂŶŝǌĞĚ ůŝŶĞƐ ŝŶ ƚŚĞ ƌŝŐŚƚͲŽĨͲǁĂǇƐ ĂŶĚ ϱ͕ϬϬϬ ŐĂůǀĂŶŝǌĞĚ
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞůŝŶĞƐŽŶƉƌŝǀĂƚĞƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇƚŚĂƚŶĞĞĚƚŽďĞƌĞƉůĂĐĞĚ͘dŚĞĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚĐŽƐƚŝƐΨϮϬDĂŶĚǁŝůůŶĞĞĚƚŽ
ďĞĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚǁŚĞŶƐĞƚƚŝŶŐƌĂƚĞƐ͘dƚĞĂŵǁŝůůďĞĨŽƌŵĞĚŝŶ&zϮϬϭϵƚŽƉůĂŶĨŽƌƚŚĞƐĞƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘
EydzZ^h'dEZd^
ϱͲǇĞĂƌƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶŽĨĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚĂŶŶƵĂůůǇƚŽ,Wt͛ƐŽĂƌĚĂŶĚŝƚǇŽƵŶĐŝů͘dŚĞ
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞƐ ƚŚĞ ŝŵƉĂĐƚ ŽĨ ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ ĐĂƉŝƚĂů ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ ĂŶĚ ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ ŽŶ ƚŚĞ ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ
ƵƚŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘ƵĞƚŽƚŚĞŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐĞĨĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇĂƚƚŚĞŶĞǁƉŽǁĞƌƉůĂŶƚ͕ĂŶĚĨĂǀŽƌĂďůĞŶĂƚƵƌĂůŐĂƐƉƌŝĐĞƐ͕ƚŚĞƌĞ
ŝƐĂƌĂƚĞĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞŽĨϱ͘ϳйĨŽƌƚŚĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐhƚŝůŝƚǇŝŶ&zϮϬϭϵ͘dŚĞŽĂƌĚĂŶĚŝƚǇŽƵŶĐŝůĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚĂƌĂƚĞ
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŽĨϯ͘ϲйĨŽƌƚŚĞtĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌhƚŝůŝƚǇĂŶĚĂϭ͘ϵйƌĂƚĞŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĨŽƌƚŚĞtĂƚĞƌhƚŝůŝƚǇĨŽƌ&zϮϬϭϵ͘dŚĞ
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞŝŶƌĂƚĞƐŝƐƚŽƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĐĂƉŝƚĂůĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶƐĂŶĚĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ͕ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĚĞďƚƌĂƚŝŽƐƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚďǇďŽŶĚ
ĐŽǀĞŶĂŶƚƐ͕ĂŶĚŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞĐĂƐŚůĞǀĞůƐ͘
ZYh^d^&KZ/E&KZDd/KE
dŚŝƐĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůƌĞƉŽƌƚŝƐĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚƚŽƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĂŐĞŶĞƌĂůŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁŽĨƚŚĞ,ŽůůĂŶĚŽĂƌĚŽĨWƵďůŝĐtŽƌŬƐĨŽƌ
ĂůůƚŚŽƐĞǁŝƚŚĂŶŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚŝŶƚŚĞ,Wt͛ƐĨŝŶĂŶĐĞƐ͘YƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐĂŶǇŽĨƚŚĞŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ
ŝŶƚŚŝƐƌĞƉŽƌƚŽƌƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐĨŽƌĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂůŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŽƵůĚďĞĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚƚŽDƌ͘ŚƵĐŬtĂƌƌĞŶ͕
,ŽůůĂŶĚ ŽĂƌĚ ŽĨ WƵďůŝĐ tŽƌŬƐ͕ ϲϮϱ ,ĂƐƚŝŶŐƐ ǀĞŶƵĞ͕ ,ŽůůĂŶĚ͕ DŝĐŚŝŐĂŶ ϰϵϰϮϯ Žƌ
ĐǁĂƌƌĞŶΛŚŽůůĂŶĚďƉǁ͘ĐŽŵ͘
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
Electric
Utility
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Unbilled revenue
Special assessments and other
Accrued interest
Due from other funds of the
City of Holland
Inventories
Prepaid items and other assets
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest
Total restricted assets
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net
Other noncurrent assets:
Due from City of Wyoming

Wastewater
Utility

$ 49,096,042
29,373,630

$

7,965,054
5,105,341

Water
Utility

$

Business-Type Activities
2018

2017

5,496,808
3,611,943

$ 62,557,904
38,090,914

$ 74,223,012
35,355,913

7,349,962
7,652,791
232,071

1,086,223
609,813
26,957
25,611

818,925
705,040
69,812
6,902

9,255,110
8,967,644
96,769
264,584

16,007,307
7,775,484
122,891
116,122

700,834
3,517,934
3,492,351

1,858
20,241
39,109

20,046
233,330
34,500

722,738
3,771,505
3,565,960

848,843
5,498,009
3,687,297

101,415,615

14,880,207

10,997,306

127,293,128

143,634,878

19,969,812
15,426,000
35,395,812

6,133,683
6,133,683

2,266,059
5,724
2,271,783

28,369,554
15,426,000
5,724
43,801,278

14,454,576
17,846,067
5,103
32,305,746

2,096,962
1,737,990
71,948,697
(29,707,753)
46,075,896

23,426,261
4,429,017
654,863,370
(253,623,611)
429,095,037

23,368,796
206,874,310
427,263,686
(238,271,658)
419,235,134

21,068,626
1,267,923
478,848,720
(179,024,715)
322,160,554

260,673
1,423,104
104,065,953
(44,891,143)
60,858,587

-

-

2,086,386

2,086,386

2,213,944

357,556,366

66,992,270

50,434,065

474,982,701

453,754,824

458,971,981

81,872,477

61,431,371

602,275,829

597,389,702

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension amounts

150,379

43,289

195,929
34,176

195,929
227,844

252,380
2,228,337

Total deferred outflows of resources

150,379

43,289

230,105

423,773

2,480,717

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

continued…
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
Electric
Utility
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages payable
Due to other funds of the
City of Holland
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable

$

Wastewater
Utility

8,407,668
257,227

$

820,042
73,788

Business-Type Activities

Water
Utility

$

2018

700,809
57,000

$

2017

9,928,519
388,015

$ 22,762,241
276,744

16,024
844,508
15,939
1,809,119

3,526
23,592
780,041

63,096
3,623
337,816

82,646
844,508
43,154
2,926,976

732,659
778,381
44,871
2,761,827

5,113,213
3,264,703

-

1,529,741
30,670

6,642,954
3,295,373

6,396,793
3,343,698

19,728,401

1,700,989

2,722,755

24,152,145

37,097,214

8,103,029

10,249,650

1,529,329

19,882,008

21,603,014

154,120,192
824,671

237,404

11,013,693
187,425

165,133,885
1,249,500

173,130,907
4,203,951

-

-

-

507,609

117,967

90,678

716,254

-

163,555,501

10,605,021

12,821,125

186,981,647

199,783,926

183,283,902

12,306,010

15,543,880

211,133,792

236,881,140

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension amounts
Deferred other postemployment benefit amounts

1,169,225
300,615

336,595
69,862

265,733
53,701

1,771,553
424,178

327,254
-

Total deferred inflows of resources

1,469,840

406,457

319,434

2,195,731

327,254

162,927,149

52,141,087

33,728,391

248,796,627

230,847,314

29,802,275
5,593,537
76,045,657

6,133,683
10,928,529

1,889,902
381,881
9,797,988

31,692,177
6,133,683
381,881
5,593,537
96,772,174

21,114,822
5,211,276
359,379
5,620,269
99,508,965

$ 274,368,618

$ 69,203,299

$ 45,798,162

$ 389,370,079

$ 362,662,025

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Long-term debt payable from
restricted assets, net of current portion
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit
obligation
Total other postemployment benefit
liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Equipment replacement
Park Township
Cooperative payments
Unrestricted
Total net position

-

846,054

concluded

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
Electric
Utility
Operating revenues
Residential sales
Commercial sales
Industrial sales
Wholesale
Fees and other
Total operating revenues

Wastewater
Utility

$ 21,611,194
35,264,873
50,279,890
2,805,154
109,961,111

$

3,266,931
2,795,203
948,640
2,038,533
2,582,835
11,632,142

Business-Type Activities

Water
Utility
$

2018

2017

3,353,079
3,102,722
1,249,765
2,397,529
619,948
10,723,043

$ 28,231,204
41,162,798
52,478,295
4,436,062
6,007,937
132,316,296

$ 27,169,266
40,085,574
53,540,495
5,035,409
7,269,633
133,100,377

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Production
Distribution
Administrative and general
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

4,341,985
2,832,506
41,889,167
5,869,591
7,852,355
15,067,564
77,853,168

1,319,504
807,176
2,787,049
961,263
1,670,381
3,003,211
10,548,584

1,049,187
690,578
652,831
666,422
1,386,160
1,940,921
6,386,099

6,710,676
4,330,260
45,329,047
7,497,276
10,908,896
20,011,696
94,787,851

6,456,087
5,120,884
55,898,734
5,926,636
9,550,217
11,752,158
94,704,716

Operating income

32,107,943

1,083,558

4,336,944

37,528,445

38,395,661

458,933
(6,040,466)
14,916
-

57,096
(290,465)
2,865,213

(12,378)
(370,911)
-

503,651
(6,701,842)
14,916
2,865,213

545,087
(800,439)
891,636
-

133,853
(5,432,764)

28,766
2,660,610

(10,222)
(393,511)

152,397
(3,165,665)

(740,250)
(103,966)

26,675,179

3,744,168

3,943,433

34,362,780

38,291,695

-

309,092
81,064
390,156

123,566
5,512
129,078

432,658
86,576
519,234

408,571
214,327
177,994
800,892

-

-

4,134,324

4,072,511

-

-

Nonoperating income (expense), net
Investment income
Interest expense
Insurance refunds
Capacity revenue
Gain (loss) on sale and disposal of
capital assets
Total nonoperating income (expense), net
Net income before contributions
and transfers
Capital contributions
Infrastructure
Trunkage
Federal and state capital grants
Total capital contributions
Transfers out to other funds
of the City of Holland

(6,296,016)

Change in net position before
extraordinary item

20,379,163

Extraordinary item (Note 12)

(1,605,380)

Change in net position

18,773,783

4,134,324

255,871,387
(276,552)

65,071,132
(2,157)

Net position, beginning of year
Restatement for implementation of GASB 75 (Note 13)
Net position, end of year

$ 274,368,618

$ 69,203,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(6,296,016)

(5,850,000)

28,585,998

33,242,587

(1,605,380)

(3,603,908)

4,072,511

26,980,618

29,638,679

41,719,506
6,145

362,662,025
(272,564)

333,023,346
-

$ 45,798,162

$ 389,370,079

$ 362,662,025

HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to/for employees
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Insurance refunds
Capacity revenue
Transfers to other funds of the City of Holland
Capital Grant - State Drinking Water
Revolving Fund - Wyoming portion
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Capital contributions received
Proceeds from State Drinking Water
Revolving Fund Bonds
Federal and state capital grants
Capital Grant - State Drinking Water
Revolving Fund
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Purchase/construction of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale or maturities of
investment securities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities

Business-Type Activities

Electric
Utility

Wastewater
Utility

Water
Utility

$ 115,105,044
(66,786,542)
(6,634,645)
41,683,857

$ 11,881,244
(7,209,816)
(2,011,327)
2,660,101

$ 11,240,725
(2,988,298)
(1,636,113)
6,616,314

14,916
(6,296,016)
(6,281,100)

(5,455,545)
(7,747,213)
-

2,865,213
-

-

-

2,756

2,865,213

2,756

(641,293)
(291,071)
309,092

(1,604,442)
(398,416)
123,566

2018

2017

$ 138,227,013
(76,984,656)
(10,282,085)
50,960,272

$ 127,998,203
(71,922,564)
(9,972,938)
46,102,701

14,916
2,865,213
(6,296,016)

891,636
(5,850,000)

2,756

8,119

(3,413,131)

(4,950,245)

(7,701,280)
(8,436,700)
432,658

(2,974,689)
(1,139,936)
214,327

-

81,064

1,043
-

1,043
81,064

122,207
161,756

3,599,667

43,356

5,512
3,237

5,512
3,646,260

16,238
2,487,948

(27,397,087)

(2,487,932)

(3,480,443)

(33,365,462)

(36,930,189)

(37,000,178)

(2,986,784)

(5,349,943)

(45,336,905)

(38,042,338)

(51,688)
(44,419,359)

(54,869)
(5,010,599)

(128,638)
(3,497,193)

(235,195)
(52,927,151)

529,879
(53,076,048)

47,753,095

2,650,083

2,798,802

53,201,980

58,299,089

3,282,048

(2,415,385)

39,634

5,752,920

(827,029)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

1,684,627

123,145

442,098

2,249,870

8,863,038

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

67,381,227

13,975,592

7,320,769

88,677,588

79,814,550

$ 69,065,854

$ 14,098,737

7,762,867

$ 90,927,458

$ 88,677,588

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

continued…
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2017)
Electric
Utility

Wastewater
Utility

Water
Utility

2018

2017

5,496,808
2,266,059

$ 62,557,904
28,369,554

$ 74,223,012
14,454,576

$

7,762,867

$ 90,927,458

$ 88,677,588

$

4,336,944

$ 37,528,445

$ 38,395,661

1,940,921

20,011,696

11,752,158

379,101

5,586,159

(6,013,749)

Classified on the statement of net position as
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$ 49,096,042
19,969,812

$

7,965,054
6,133,683

$

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 69,065,854

$ 14,098,737

$ 32,107,943

$

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
which provided (used) cash:
Receivables
Due from other funds of the
City of Holland
Inventories
Prepaid items and other assets
Due from the City of Wyoming
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages payable
Due to other funds of the
City of Holland
Deposits
Landfill postclosure liability
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to the
net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources related to the
net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit
obligation
Total other postemployment benefit liability
Deferred inflows of resources related to the
total other postemployment benefit liability
Net cash provided by operating activities

15,067,564

1,083,558

3,003,211

5,473,690

Business-Type Activities

(266,632)

(404,046)
124,370
166,273
(11,294,946)
78,868

515,734
32
(23,486)
(1,462,086)
17,307

14,417
(3,278)
(21,450)
124,165
(76,690)
15,096

126,105
121,124
121,337
124,165
(12,833,722)
111,271

759,665
297,816
(164,385)
54,892
(663,803)
63,207

(162,964)
66,127
121,894
(1,949,937)

(305,583)
1,289
(561,346)

(181,466)
12,240
(443,168)

(650,013)
66,127
135,423
(2,954,451)

(1,063,138)
97,018
1,046,533
(99,849)
(2,567,588)

1,320,325

380,093

300,075

2,000,493

4,264,214

953,237

274,417

216,645

1,444,299

(285,156)

(66,269)

(50,939)

(402,364)

300,615

69,862

53,701

424,178

-

6,616,314

$ 50,960,272

$ 46,102,701

$ 41,683,857

$

2,660,101

$

(60,698)
4,747
-

concluded
Non-cash transaction - June 30, 2018:
The Electric Fund reported a non-cash extraordinary item of $1,605,380 which was the result of a loss from certain coal plant spare parts
that had been determined to be obsolete in the amount of $1,632,722 and a recovery of $27,342 from selling the last of the coal
inventory at a higher price than was previously determined as fair market value.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The Holland Board of Public Works (the “Board”) is comprised of three enterprise funds of the City of
Holland (the “City”). The Board operates under direction of the City Charter and City Council resolution
subject to direction by a Council-appointed Board of Directors, and provides electric, water and
wastewater services to users in the City of Holland and portions of the surrounding area.
Basis of Presentation
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Board’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Board also recognizes
as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to
the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position) report information on all of the Holland Board of
Public Works. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements.
Separate columns are provided for the individual major proprietary funds that make up the total businesstype activities for the government-wide financial statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are used in preparing the
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the statements.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Board's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
The Board reports the following major enterprise funds:
The Electric Utility Fund is used to account for the electric utility which include fees and costs
associated with the generation, purchase, transmission, distribution and sale of electricity.
The Wastewater Utility Fund is used to account for the wastewater utility which include fees and
costs associated with the collection, transportation and treatment of wastewater.
The Water Utility Fund is used to account for the water utility which includes fees and costs
associated with the treatment and distribution of water.
Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Board considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Investments
Investments consist primarily of commercial paper and U.S. Agency debt securities, both of which are
carried at fair value.
Receivables
All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncollectible. At June 30, 2018, the allowance for uncollectible amounts in
the electric, wastewater and water utility funds was $90,143, $866 and $2,944, respectively.
Due To/From Other Funds
During the course of its operations, the Board has numerous transactions between funds to finance
operations and to provide services. To the extent that certain transactions between funds had not been
paid or received as of fiscal year end, interfund accounts receivable or payable were recorded.
Inventories
Inventory consisting of coal is stated at the lower of cost, determined by the moving average method, or
market. Inventory of system components is stated at cost utilizing the first-in first-out (FIFO) method.
Prepaid Items
The Board incurred expenses prior to year-end for services that will be performed in the next fiscal year.
In these situations, the Board records an asset to reflect the investment in future services.

23

HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
Restricted Assets
Certain proceeds of the Board’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because they are
maintained in separate accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The bond and
interest redemption fund account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments
over the next twelve months. The bond and interest reserve account is used to report resources set aside
to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond current debt service account. The
equipment replacement account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies
or to fund asset renewals and replacements.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and
an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition
cost at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method based on the
economic useful lives of the related assets.
Estimated useful lives of the related assets by asset category are as follows:

Years
Production plant
Distribution/Collection system
Transmission
General plant

5-50
20-50
20-50
5-50

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Capital assets of the Water and Wastewater Utility Funds include assets purchased with funds provided by
participating townships. Depreciation on these assets were $72,682 and $639,318, respectively.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
Due From City of Wyoming
The Board entered into a cost sharing agreement with the City of Wyoming to finance and construct the
Wyoming Interconnect Water Project to be financed by a State Drinking Water Revolving fund bond issue.
Upon completion, an estimated 15% of the related debt is scheduled to be forgiven by the grantor agency.
Completion of the construction project and repayment of the associated bonds will be the responsibility
of the Board. Under the cost sharing agreement, 47.54% of the assets constructed have been transferred
to the City of Wyoming, along with an equal proportion of the related debt payments to be paid to the
Board by the City of Wyoming, based on the installment payments on the related debt. The balance of
this receivable at June 30, 2018 is equal to 47.54% of the assets completed and capitalized at that date,
less a ratable share of the estimated debt forgiveness and principal payments made by the City of
Wyoming.
Deferred Outflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Board reports a deferred outflow of
resources for its deferred charge on refunding, which results from the difference in the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. The Board also reports deferred outflows of resources related
to the net pension liability, related to changes in expected and actual investment returns, assumptions,
and benefits provided in its pension plan. A portion of these costs represent contributions to the plan
subsequent to the plan measurement date.
Compensated Absences
Eligible employees are permitted to accumulate paid time off benefits in varying amounts based on length
of service and other established criteria. Paid time off is accrued when incurred in the Board’s financial
statements.
Bond Discounts/Premiums and Deferred Refunding Costs
Premiums, discounts, and deferred refunding costs associated with various bond issues are being
amortized by the interest or straight-line methods over the repayment periods of the related bonds.
Amortization of these items is charged to interest expense.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Board reports deferred inflows of resources related
to the net pension liability and total other postemployment benefit liability, related to changes in
expected and actual investment returns, assumptions, and benefits provided in its pension and other
postemployment benefit plans.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits
For purposes of measuring the net pension and total other postemployment benefits liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension and other postemployment
benefits, and pension and other postemployment benefit expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the plans and additions to/deductions from the plans fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Transfers
Transfers from the electric fund represent contributions to the City of Holland’s general fund, based on
Board and City agreements.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the June 30, 2017 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the
June 30, 2018 presentation.
2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The Board’s deposits and investments are included on the statement of net position under the following
classifications:
Statement of net position
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

$

62,557,904
38,090,914
28,369,554
15,426,000

Total

$ 144,444,372

Deposits and investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:
Deposits and investments
Checking and savings accounts
Certificates of deposit (due within one to five years)
Investments
Cash on hand
Total

$

80,946,917
6,651,776
56,842,729
2,950

$ 144,444,372
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
Statutory Authority
State statutes authorize the Board to invest in:
භ Bonds, securities, other obligations and repurchase agreements of the United States, or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States.
භ Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a qualified
financial institution.
භ Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications established by
not less than two standard rating services and that matures not more than 270 days after the date of
purchase.
භ Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks.
භ Obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions, that, at the time of purchase are
rated as investment grade by at least one standard rating service.
භ Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority to purchase only
investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public corporation.
භ External investment pools as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended through December 31, 1997.
Investment and Deposit Risk
Interest Rate Risk. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the
allowable investments as identified above. The Board’s investment policy does not have specific limits in
excess of state law on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from increasing interest rates. The maturity dates for each investment are identified below for
investments held at year end.

No maturity
U.S. government securities
Commercial paper
Michigan Public Power
Agency (MPPA) investments

$

$

Due in 1-5
years

Due < 1 year
-

$

7,648,992
6,914,823

$

Totals

36,685,377
-

$

44,334,369
6,914,823

5,593,537

-

-

5,593,537

5,593,537

$ 14,563,815

$ 36,685,377

$ 56,842,729

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
Board’s deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the Board’s investment policy does
not have specific limits in excess of state law on custodial credit risk. As of year end, $83,910,842 of the
Board’s bank balance of $88,362,407 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and
uncollateralized.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Notes to Financial Statements
Custodial Credit Risk – Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event
of the failure of the counterparty, the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does not require and the
Board does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk which is more restrictive than state law.
Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of deposits and
bank accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum maturities
and ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of specific financial institutions, qualified mutual funds
and qualified external investment pools as identified above. The Board’s investment policy does not have
specific limits in excess of state law on investment credit risk. The ratings for each investment are
identified below for investments held at year end.
Credit risk ratings, where applicable, are summarized as follows:
S&P AA+
S&P A1
Unrated

$

44,334,369
6,914,823
5,593,537

$ 56,842,729
Concentration of Credit Risk. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit concentration of
credit risk as identified in the listing above. The Board’s investment policy does not allow for investment
concentration with any one financial institution to exceed 80% of the total portfolio. This requirement
was not exceeded. More than 5 percent of the Board’s investments are in commercial paper, MPPA and
government agency securities as noted above.
Fair Value Measurement
The Board categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
The Board has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2018:
භ U.S. Treasury securities with a balance of $44,334,369 at June 30, 2018 (level 2 inputs).
භ Commercial paper with a balance of $6,914,823 at June 30, 2018 (level 2 inputs).
භ Assets held with Michigan Public Power Agency, with a balance of $5,593,537 (level 3 inputs).
The Board has earmarked cash and investment balances for system expansion, maintenance and insurance
risk retention as follows:
Electric
Wastewater
Water
Total
Utility
Utility
Utility
City trunkage
Insurance/risk retention

$

5,241,384

$

559,414
773,674

$

1,265,147
1,814,248

$

1,824,561
7,829,306

Total

$

5,241,384

$

1,333,088

$

3,079,395

$

9,653,867
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of capital assets at June 30, 2018 is as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
$
23,368,796
Construction in progress
206,874,310
230,243,106
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Production plant
Distribution/Collection
system
Transmission
General plant

Additions

$

$

$

(4,803)
(4,803)

Ending
Balance

Transfers

$

17,368
(230,427,811)
(230,410,443)

$

23,426,261
4,429,017
27,855,278

196,229,752

1,480,733

(4,365,711)

201,190,266

394,535,040

174,726,135
30,353,517
25,954,282
427,263,686

2,424,695
1,432,616
5,338,044

(763,710)
(412,021)
(2,607,361)
(8,148,803)

6,486,488
503,465
22,230,224
230,410,443

182,873,608
30,444,961
47,009,761
654,863,370

(12,194,135)

3,396,454

-

(121,157,606)

(4,677,037)
(874,520)
(2,266,004)
(20,011,696)

551,656
400,897
310,736
4,659,743

-

(101,417,195)
(14,703,729)
(16,345,081)
(253,623,611)

(14,673,652)

(3,489,060)

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Production plant
(112,359,925)
Distribution/Collection
system
(97,291,814)
Transmission
(14,230,106)
General plant
(14,389,813)
(238,271,658)
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net
188,992,028
Business-type activities
capital assets, net

40,097
27,987,321
28,027,418

Deletions

419,235,134

$

13,353,766
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4. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt outstanding is as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Revenue bonds
Pension bonds
Capital lease
Total installment debt

$ 172,507,567
12,807,811
9,112,500
194,427,878

Unamortized net premium/
discount on revenue bonds
Compensated absences
Landfill postclosure

Additions
$

7,020,133
1,070,547
1,373,983
$ 203,892,541

1,043
1,043
1,205,970
-

$

1,207,013

Deductions
$

Ending
Balance

(6,010,000) $ 166,498,610
(1,296,280)
11,511,531
(395,000)
8,717,500
(7,701,280)
186,727,641
(1,741,904)
(1,070,547)
-

Due Within
One Year
$

497,954
1,205,970
-

5,278,229
1,205,970
1,373,983

$ (10,513,731) $ 194,585,823

Revenue bonds
$5,395,110 2011A Drinking Water Revolving Bonds, due in annual installments of
$236,500 to $368,610 plus interest at 2.5%, payable semi-annually, through
April 1, 2032.
$9,740,000 2012A Water Supply Systems Revenue Refunding Bonds, due in annual
installments of $190,000 to $1,430,000 plus interest ranging from 2.0 to 4.0%,
payable semi-annually, through July 1, 2024.

6,145,000
1,316,006
405,000
7,866,006

$

9,569,930

$

4,428,610

7,830,000

$158,840,000 2014A Electric Utility System Revenue Bonds, due in annual
installments of $4,600,000 to $10,705,000 plus interest ranging from 1.659
to 4.919%, payable semi-annually, through July 1, 2039.

154,240,000

Total revenue bonds

166,498,610

Pension bonds
$14,090,000 2016 Pension Bonds (Board portion), due in annual installments of
$1,282,190 to $1,592,170 plus interest ranging from 0.76 to 3.42%, payable
semi-annually, through December 1, 2025.

11,511,531

Capital lease
$9,500,000 2015 Capital lease payable to the County of Ottawa, due in annual
installments of $387,500 to $657,500 plus interest ranging from 0.75 to 3.4%,
payable semi-annually, through June 1, 2035.

8,717,500

Total long-term debt

$ 186,727,641
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The annual requirements to maturity on installment debt outstanding as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:
Year Ended
June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039

Principal
$

Interest

Total

7,866,006
8,038,868
8,249,866
8,446,500
8,753,452
38,816,839
39,788,610
45,852,500
20,915,000

$

7,432,769
7,281,615
7,081,499
6,895,966
6,601,516
28,795,096
21,165,846
11,599,197
1,524,300

$ 15,298,775
15,320,483
15,331,365
15,342,466
15,354,968
67,611,935
60,954,456
57,451,697
22,439,300

$ 186,727,641

$

98,377,804

$ 285,105,445

Covenants of the Revenue Bond Resolution provide for, among other things, restrictions on the transfer of
funds, issuance of additional debt, creation of liens, and the sale and lease of property. In addition, the
covenants require that the rates be set sufficient to cover the scheduled debt service.
Landfill Closure and Post Closure Care
State and federal laws and regulations require the Board to place a final cover on its fly ash and
wastewater treatment bio solids landfill when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and
postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the
Board reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period
based on landfill capacity used as of each statement of net position date. The $1,373,983 reported as
landfill closure and postclosure liability at June 30, 2018, represents the cumulative amount reported to
date based on the use of 85 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. The Board will recognize
the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care in fiscal year 2018 since the disposal related
to the closure of the James De Young coal plant will fill the remaining capacity of the open landfill cell.
The Board is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to
finance closure and postclosure care. The Board is in compliance with these requirements. At June 30,
2018, the closure and postclosure costs have been assured by a $100,000 letter of credit and $16,776 held
in trust.
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5. PENSION PLANS
General Information About the Plan
Plan Description. The Board's defined benefit pension plan provides certain retirement, disability and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Board participates in the Municipal Employees
Retirement System (MERS) of Michigan. MERS is an agent multiple-employer, statewide public employee
pension plan established by the Michigan Legislature under Public Act 135 of 1945 and administered by a
nine member Retirement Board. MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. This report may be obtained accessing the MERS
website at www.mersofmich.com.
Benefits Provided. Pension benefits vary by division/bargaining unit and are calculated as final average
compensation (based on a 5 year period) and multipliers ranging from 2.0% to 2.25%. Participants are
considered to be fully vested in the plan after 10 years. Normal retirement age is 60 with early
retirement at age 50 with 25 years of service, age 55 with 15 years of service, or age 55 with 25 years of
service, depending on division/bargaining unit. The plan is closed to new entrants.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. At the December 31, 2017 valuation date, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

129
34
64

Total membership

227

Contributions. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the actuarially
determined rate, as established by the MERS Retirement Board. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. At June 30, 2018, monthly employer
contributions ranged from $2,835 to $21,915, depending on division/bargaining unit. In addition, the
employer may establish contribution rates to be paid by its covered employees. Currently, employees are
required to contribute to the plan at 3.0% of covered payroll.
Net Pension Liability. The Board's net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date.
Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return

2.5%
3.75% in the long-term
7.75%, net of investment and administrative
expense including inflation
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Although no explicit price inflation assumption is used in the valuation, the long-term annual rate of price
inflation implicit in the 3.75% base wage inflation is 2.5%.
Mortality rates used were based on the RP-2014 Group Annuity Mortality Table of a 50% Male and 50%
Female blend.
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the most
recent actuarial experience study of 2009-2013.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a model
method in which the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of investment and administrative expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Global equity
Global fixed income
Real assets
Diversifying strategies

57.5%
20.0%
12.5%
10.0%

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

Expected
MoneyWeighted Rate
of Return

5.02%
2.18%
4.23%
6.56%

2.89%
0.44%
0.51%
0.66%

100.0%
Inflation
Administrative expenses netted above

3.25%
0.25%

Investment rate of return

8.00%

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of December 31, 2017 was
8.0%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and
employee contributions will be made at the rates agreed upon for employees and the actuarially
determined rates for employers. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to pay all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability
The components of the change in the net pension liability are summarized as follows:

Balances at December 31, 2016

Total Pension
Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
(b)

$ 54,214,123

$ 50,010,172

468,117
4,227,124

-

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net changes

(705,307)
(3,218,276)
771,658

Balances at December 31, 2017

$

54,985,781

$

Net Pension
Liability
(a) - (b)
$

4,203,951

468,117
4,227,124

404,799
145,954
6,496,694

(705,307)
(404,799)
(145,954)
(6,496,694)

(3,218,276)
(103,062)
3,726,109

103,062
(2,954,451)

53,736,281

$

1,249,500

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the net
pension liability of the Board, calculated using the discount rate of 8.0%, as well as what the Board's net
pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (7.0%) or 1%
higher (9.0%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(7.0%)

Current
Discount Rate
(8.0%)

$

$

6,817,694

1,249,500

1% Increase
(9.0%)
$

(3,534,698)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued Plan financial statements.
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Board recognized pension expense of $945,474. The Board reported
deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Difference between expected and
actual experience
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

$

-

$

227,844

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$

227,844

352,653

Net Deferred
Outflows
(Inflows) of
Resources

$

1,418,900
1,771,553
$

1,771,553

(352,653)
(1,418,900)
(1,771,553)
227,844

$

(1,543,709)

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net pension liability for the year ending June
30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to the pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ended
June 30,

Amount

2019
2020
2021
2022

$

(318,364)
(88,192)
(843,658)
(521,339)

Total

$

(1,771,553)

Payable to the Pension Plan. At June 30, 2018, the Board reported a payable of $37,974 for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Defined Contribution Pension Plan
The Board participates in a defined contribution retirement plan which is administered by the ICMA in
participation with MERS for both nonbargaining and union employees. The defined contribution provisions
of the plan require the Board to contribute 6% of covered employee payroll and to match employee
contributions up to 2% for nonbargaining employees and up to 2% for union employees. The participants
direct their investments under defined contribution provisions. The Board contributed $607,368 and
employees contributed $148,862 to the defined contribution plan.
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6. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN
General Information About the OPEB Plan
Plan Description. The Board participates in the City of Holland Retiree Healthcare Plan (the “OPEB
Plan”), a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the City. The OPEB Plan
provides 100% of health insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents. The benefit is
provided upon the employee attaining 50 or 55 years of age, depending on employment contract, and 25
years of service to the City or 60 years of age and 10 years of service. The coverage is maintained until
the employee is eligible for federal Medicare coverage at age 65. Stand-alone financial statements are
not issued for the OPEB Plan.
Management of the OPEB Plan is vested with the City Council.
Benefits Provided. The City Council has the authority to establish or amend benefit terms, to determine
the types of benefits provided through the OPEB Plan, and to determine the classes of plan members
covered. The Board provides a monthly subsidy payment for the retiree health insurance premium
charged by the City’s Health and Dental Insurance Fund for single or two-person coverage, depending on
employment contract. No subsidy payment is made if the retiree can obtain no cost coverage through
other employment or through a spouse’s employment. However, retired employees who are eligible to
receive hospital, surgical and medical coverage from another employer sponsored plan may request
reimbursement for any premium cost up to the maximum amounts.
Contributions. OPEB Plan members are not required to contribute to the OPEB Plan. The contribution
requirements are established and may be amended by the City Council. The required contribution is
based on projected pay-as-you go financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits
as determined annually by the City and the Board.
Plan Membership. At June 30, 2018, OPEB Plan membership consisted of the following:
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments
Active plan members

10
170

Total membership

180

Total OPEB Liability
The total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date.
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Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:
Inflation
Salary increases
Investment rate of return
20-year Aa municipal bond rate
Healthcare cost trend rate

Mortality

Implicit in expected payroll increases
2.0%
N/A - plan is not pre-funded
3.0%
8.0% for pre-65, graded down 0.5% per year to an
ultimate rate of 5.0%, and 5.0% for all years for
post-65
IRS Regulations for 2018 (1.430(h)(3)) separately
for males and females as well as annuitants and
non-annuitants. Based on RP-2000 Tables with
Scale AA.

As this plan is not pre-funded, no long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was determined.
Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.0%. Because the OPEB
Plan does not have a dedicated OPEB trust, there are no assets projected to be sufficient to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Projected benefits were discounted at a
discount rate reflecting a 20-year AA/Aa tax-exempt municipal bond yield. A single equivalent discount
rate that yields the same present value of benefits is calculated. This discount rate is used to determine
the total OPEB liability.
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability
The components of the change in the total OPEB liability are summarized as follows:
Total OPEB
Liability
(a)
Balances at June 30, 2017

$

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions
Net changes
Balances at June 30, 2018

47,727
34,642
(296,134)
(165,318)
(23,281)
(402,364)
$
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Changes of assumptions for the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation include mortality updated to 2018 IRC
rates for all groups, discount rate lowered to 3.0% to reflect current municipal bond rates, and medical
trend rates were reset starting at 8.0% in 2019.
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the total
OPEB liability of the Board, calculated using the discount rate of 3.0%, as well as what the Board's total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (2.0%) or 1% higher
(4.0%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(2.0%)

Current
Discount Rate
(3.0%)

$

$

784,466

716,254

1% Increase
(4.0%)
$

653,680

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates. The following
presents the total OPEB liability of the Board, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% for
pre-65, graded down 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.0%, and 5.0% for all years for post-65, as well
as what the Board's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate
that is 1% lower (7.0% trending to 4.0%) or 1% higher (9.0% trending to 6.0%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(7.0 trending
to 4.0%%)

Current
Healthcare
Trent Rate
(8.0% trending
to 5.0%)

1% Increase
(9.0% trending
to 6.0%)

$

$

$

666,380

716,254

775,825

OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Board recognized OPEB expense of $45,097. The Board reported
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:
Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
Difference between expected and actual
experience
Changes of assumptions
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Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:
Year Ended
June 30,

Amount

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

$

37,274
37,274
37,274
37,274
37,274
237,808

Total

$

424,178

Payable to the OPEB Plan. At June 30, 2018, the Board had no amounts payable for contributions to the
OPEB plan.
7. RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,
employee injuries (workers’ compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The
Board is self-insured for these risks through the City of Holland’s self-insurance program except for
workers’ compensation risks which are covered through commercial insurance. The City purchases excess
reinsurance and allocates risk management costs among the various funds of the City, including the Board
of Public Works. The schedule of changes in the self-insured liability balances is included in the City of
Holland’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.
8. COMMITMENTS
The Board has contracts outstanding for remaining project costs of approximately $2,652,000 for various
electric utility project, $17,580,000 for electric equipment maintenance, $375,000 for various water
projects, and $870,000 for various wastewater projects.
9. JOINT VENTURE
The Board entered into a joint venture, the Michigan Public Power Agency (MPPA), with 15 other
municipal electric systems. The MPPA was formed to undertake the planning, financing, development,
acquisition, construction, improvement, operation and maintenance of projects to supply electric power
and energy for present or future needs of its members. Each MPPA member is a municipal corporation
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan and owns and operates a municipal electric system.
The Board is unaware of any circumstances that would cause an additional benefit or burden to the
participating governments in the near future. Complete financial statements for the Michigan Public
Power Agency can be obtained from the administrative offices at 809 Centennial Way, Lansing MI 48917.
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Under the joint venture, the Board has entered into Power Sales Contracts and Project Support Contracts.
These contracts provide for the Board to purchase from MPPA 15.66% of the energy generated by MPPA’s
37.22% ownership in Detroit Edison’s Belle River Unit No. 1, which became operational in August 1984,
26.35% of MPPA’s 4.8% ownership in Consumers Energy’s Campbell Unit No. 3, which became operational
in September 1980, and 13.35% of the energy generated by MPPA's 5.16% ownership in the AMP Fremont
Energy Center (AFEC), which became operational in June 2012. The contracts required the Board to
purchase approximately 38 and 10 megawatts of power, respectively, in 1995 and thereafter for the Belle
Isle and Campbell projects. The contracts relating to the Fremont project requires the Board to purchase
approximately 8 megawatts of power in 2013 and thereafter.
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Board recognized expenses totaling $13,987,570 under the terms of
the contracts which represented $1,143,960 for fixed operating costs, $3,543,051 for debt service and
$9,300,559 for the purchase of power. Accounts payable to MPPA totaled $429,775 at June 30, 2018.
Under the terms of its contracts, the Board must make minimum annual payments equal to its share of
debt service and its share of the fixed operating costs of Detroit Edison’s Belle River No. 1, Consumers
Energy’s Campbell Unit No. 3 and American Municipal Power's AMP Fremont Energy Center Project (AFEC).
The estimated required payments presented below consider the dynamics of the PJM and MISO markets.
Debt service payments assume no early calls or refinancing of existing revenue bonds.
A summary of future transactions with the MPPA is as follows:

Campbell
Year Ended
June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043

Debt
Service

Fremont (AFEC)

Fixed
Operating

Debt
Service

Fixed
Operating

Total

$

1,111,414
1,111,355
1,111,411
555,487
-

$

402,857
414,943
427,391
216,854
-

$

278,441
278,252
278,337
278,321
278,404
1,391,741
1,391,888
1,391,304
1,252,149

$

282,382
306,454
323,447
333,151
343,145
1,777,676
1,827,956
1,868,502
1,920,702

$

2,075,094
2,111,004
2,140,586
1,383,813
621,549
3,169,417
3,219,844
3,259,806
3,172,851

$

3,889,667

$

1,462,045

$

6,818,837

$

8,983,415

$

21,153,964

Debt Service requirements for the Campbell and Fremont projects expire in the years 2019 and 2043. The
above amounts include estimated fixed operating costs for the same period as the debt service. The contracts
for the Board’s commitment for fixed operating costs to extend beyond these dates is dependent upon the use
of the facilities.
The joint venture is a result of an ongoing financial responsibility. The Board did not have an initial equity
interest and does not participate in net income or losses.
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10. LITIGATION
In the normal course of its activities, the Board is a party to various legal actions and subject to certain
asserted and unasserted claims and assessments. Although some actions have been brought, the Board
has not experienced significant losses or costs. The Board is of the opinion that the outcome of any
pending actions will not have a material effect on the Board’s financial position or results of operations.
11. NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS
The composition of net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018, was as follows:
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

$ 27,855,278
401,239,759
429,095,037

Related debt:
Total installment debt
Less pension bonds
Net bond premium/discount
Deferred charge on refunding

186,727,641
(11,511,531)
5,278,229
(195,929)
180,298,410

Net investment in capital assets

$ 248,796,627

12. EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
The Electric Fund reported a non-cash extraordinary item of $1,605,380 which was the result of a loss
from certain coal plant spare parts that had been determined to be obsolete in the amount of $1,632,722
and a recovery of $27,342 from selling the last of the coal inventory at a higher price than was previously
determined as fair market value.
13. RESTATEMENT
The Board adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, in the current year. In connection with the
implementation of this standard, the prior reported net other postemployment benefit obligation was
eliminated. As a result of this change, beginning net position of the electric utility, wastewater utility,
water utility, and business-type activities was increased (decreased) by ($276,552), ($2,157), $6,145, and
($272,564), respectively.
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14. CAPACITY REVENUE
The wastewater utility received a payment of $2,865,213 from the Northern Service Area, consisting of
Holland Township, Park Township, and Ottawa County, to change their water reclamation plant capacity
allocation from 30% to 50% for flow and pollutant loading. The payment represents $1,854,863 for bond
funded assets and $1,030,350 for equipment replacement funded assets. The water reclamation facility
will continue to be operated and maintained by Holland City, acting through its HBPW, as an independent
contractor in accordance with Good Utility Practice.
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MERS Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in the Board's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended June 30
2018
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefits
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability

$

468,117
4,227,124
-

2017
$

494,584
4,131,826
-

2016
$

508,116
3,988,984
(6,591)

2015
$

534,319
3,877,167
-

(705,307)
-

(266,556)
-

(581,928)
2,486,206

-

(3,218,276)
771,658

(3,092,525)
1,267,329

(3,090,521)
3,304,266

(2,995,515)
1,415,971

Total pension liability, beginning of year

54,214,123

52,946,794

49,642,528

48,226,557

Total pension liability, end of year

54,985,781

54,214,123

52,946,794

49,642,528

Plan fiduciary net position
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Net investment income (loss)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net change in plan fiduciary net position

404,799
145,954
6,496,694

1,623,277
158,497
5,249,048

15,566,146
140,340
(448,173)

1,500,624
128,691
2,086,857

(3,218,276)
(103,062)
3,726,109

(3,092,525)
(103,380)
3,834,917

(3,090,521)
(76,287)
12,091,505

(2,995,515)
(76,418)
644,239

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning of year

50,010,172

46,175,255

34,083,750

33,439,511

Plan fiduciary net position, end of year

53,736,281

50,010,172

46,175,255

34,083,750

6,771,539

$ 15,558,778

Board's net pension liability

$

1,249,500

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of total pension liability
Covered payroll

$

97.7%
$

4,647,824

Board's net pension liability as a percentage
of covered payroll

26.9%

4,203,951

$

92.2%
$

4,899,166

85.8%

87.2%
$

5,317,097

127.4%

68.7%
$

5,581,027

278.8%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31 of the preceding year.
Note: GASB 68 was implemented in fiscal year 2015. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years of data
will be presented.
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MERS Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of the Net Pension Liability

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30,
2018
2017
2016
2015

Total Pension
Liability
$

54,985,781
54,214,123
52,946,794
49,642,528

Plan Net
Position
$ 53,736,281
50,010,172
46,175,255
34,083,750

Net Pension
Liability
$

1,249,500
4,203,951
6,771,539
15,558,778

Plan Net
Position as
Percentage of
Total Pension
Liability
97.7%
92.2%
87.2%
68.7%

Covered
Payroll
$

4,647,824
4,899,166
5,317,097
5,581,027

Net
Pension
Liability as
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
26.9%
85.8%
127.4%
278.8%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of December 31 of the preceding year.
Note: GASB 68 was implemented in fiscal year 2015. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years of
data will be presented.
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MERS Agent Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Contributions

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30,
2018
2017
2016
2015

Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
$

455,133
355,020
957,317
1,570,584

Contributions
in Relation to
the Actuarially
Determined
Contribution
$

455,133
355,020
16,226,621
1,570,584

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
$

15,269,304
-

Covered
Payroll
$

4,715,326
5,106,936
5,543,402
5,483,611

Contributions
as Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
9.7%
7.0%
292.7%
28.6%

Note: GASB 68 was implemented in fiscal year 2015. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years of
data will be presented.
Notes to Schedule of Contributions
Valuation Date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of the
December 31 that is 18 months prior to the beginning of the fiscal year
in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates (2018, based on the 12/31/2015 actuarial valuation):
Actuarial cost method
Entry-age normal
Amortization method
Level percent of payroll, closed
Remaining amortization
period
Ranges from 6 to 14 years, depending on division/bargaining unit
Asset valuation method
10 year smoothed
Inflation
2.5%
3.75% in the long-term
Salary increases
7.5%, net of investment and administrative expense including inflation
Investment rate of return
Retirement age
Age-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility
condition. The Normal Retirement rates were first used for the
December 31, 2015 actuarial valuations. The Early Retirement rates
were first used for the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuations.
Mortality
2014 Group Annuity Mortality Table of a 50% Male and 50% Female
blend. The mortality tables were first used for the December 31, 2015
actuarial valuations.
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Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Schedule of Changes in the Board's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Year Ended
June 30
2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost
Interest
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Net change in total OPEB liability

$

47,727
34,642
(296,134)
(165,318)
(23,281)
(402,364)

Total OPEB liability, beginning of year

1,118,618

Total OPEB liability, end of year

$

716,254

Covered-employee payroll

n/a

Board's total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

n/a

Notes: GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018. This schedule is being built prospectively.
Ultimately, 10 years of data will be presented.
As the retirement benefit is a fixed amount, the covered payroll and related ratio is not applicable to be
reported.
Changes of assumptions for the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation include mortality updated to 2018 IRC
rates for all groups, discount rate lowered to 3.0% to reflect current municipal bond rates, and medical
trend rates were reset starting at 8.0% in 2019.
A Schedule of Contributions, inclusive of the amounts for the Board, is available in the City of Holland,
Michigan's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Schedule of the Total OPEB Liability

Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30,
2018

Total OPEB
Liability
$

716,254

CoveredEmployee
Payroll

Total OPEB
Liability as
Percentage of
CoveredEmployee

n/a

n/a

Note: GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018. This schedule is being built prospectively. Ultimately, 10 years
of data will be presented.
As the retirement benefit is a fixed amount, the covered payroll and related ratio is not applicable to be reported.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
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Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

Electric
Utility
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts receivable
Unbilled revenue
Special assessments and other
Accrued interest
Due from other funds of the
City of Holland
Inventories
Prepaid items and other assets
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accrued interest
Total restricted assets
Capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Plant and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

$

Wastewater
Utility

57,915,426
32,353,329

$

Water
Utility

11,213,382
203,782

$

5,094,204
2,798,802

Total

$

74,223,012
35,355,913

13,770,043
6,706,400
101,721

980,130
438,663
37,568
5,623

1,257,134
630,421
85,323
8,778

16,007,307
7,775,484
122,891
116,122

296,788
5,247,684
3,658,624

517,592
20,273
15,623

34,463
230,052
13,050

848,843
5,498,009
3,687,297

120,050,015

13,432,636

10,152,227

143,634,878

9,465,801
15,399,766
24,865,567

2,762,210
2,446,301
2,765
5,211,276

2,226,565
2,338
2,228,903

14,454,576
17,846,067
5,103
32,305,746

2,056,865
1,349,989
69,338,742
(28,195,763)
44,549,833

23,368,796
206,874,310
427,263,686
(238,271,658)
419,235,134

21,051,258
203,634,397
253,267,816
(164,656,626)
313,296,845

Other noncurrent assets:
Due from City of Wyoming

260,673
1,889,924
104,657,128
(45,419,269)
61,388,456

-

-

2,213,944

2,213,944

338,162,412

66,599,732

48,992,680

453,754,824

458,212,427

80,032,368

59,144,907

597,389,702

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension amounts

1,470,704

423,382

252,380
334,251

252,380
2,228,337

Total deferred outflows of resources

1,470,704

423,382

586,631

2,480,717

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

continued…
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June 30, 2017

Electric
Utility
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages payable
Due to other funds of the
City of Holland
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accrued interest payable
Total current liabilities

$

19,702,614
178,359

Wastewater
Utility

$

Water
Utility

2,282,128
56,481

$

777,499
41,904

Total

$

22,762,241
276,744

178,988
778,381
16,845
1,674,207

309,109
24,198
765,004

244,562
3,828
322,616

732,659
778,381
44,871
2,761,827

4,904,729
3,310,703

-

1,492,064
32,995

6,396,793
3,343,698

30,744,826

3,436,920

2,915,468

37,097,214

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Long-term debt payable from restricted assets,
net of current portion
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit obligation

8,971,593

10,904,691

1,726,730

21,603,014

160,588,516
2,774,608
516,213

798,750
182,079

12,542,391
630,593
147,762

173,130,907
4,203,951
846,054

Total noncurrent liabilities

172,850,930

11,885,520

15,047,476

199,783,926

203,595,756

15,322,440

17,962,944

236,881,140

215,988

62,178

49,088

327,254

147,803,600

52,275,956

30,767,758

230,847,314

19,245,298
5,620,269
83,202,220

5,211,276
7,583,900

1,869,524
359,379
8,722,845

21,114,822
5,211,276
359,379
5,620,269
99,508,965

41,719,506

$ 362,662,025

Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred pension amounts
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Equipment replacement
Park Township
Cooperative payments
Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 255,871,387

$

65,071,132

$

concluded
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Electric
Utility
Operating revenues
Residential sales
Commercial sales
Industrial sales
Wholesale
Fees and other
Total operating revenues

$

Wastewater
Utility

20,837,709
34,834,254
51,366,815
4,667,461
111,706,239

$

Water
Utility

3,067,518
2,490,557
935,368
2,841,454
2,049,735
11,384,632

$

Total

3,264,039
2,760,763
1,238,312
2,193,955
552,437
10,009,506

$

27,169,266
40,085,574
53,540,495
5,035,409
7,269,633
133,100,377

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Production
Distribution
Administrative and general
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

4,171,633
3,318,260
52,816,741
4,250,061
6,820,658
7,516,374
78,893,727

1,325,909
988,562
2,391,632
860,080
1,466,776
2,481,081
9,514,040

958,545
814,062
690,361
816,495
1,262,783
1,754,703
6,296,949

6,456,087
5,120,884
55,898,734
5,926,636
9,550,217
11,752,158
94,704,716

Operating income

32,812,512

1,870,592

3,712,557

38,395,661

Nonoperating income (expense), net
Investment income
Interest expense
Insurance refunds
Loss on sale and disposal of capital assets
Total nonoperating income (expense), net
Net income before contributions
and transfers

384,509
(220,554)
881,636
(429,558)
616,033

99,056
(180,032)
10,000
(163,266)
(234,242)

61,522
(399,853)
(147,426)
(485,757)

545,087
(800,439)
891,636
(740,250)
(103,966)

33,428,545

1,636,350

3,226,800

38,291,695

-

408,571
141,709
161,756
712,036

72,618
16,238
88,856

408,571
214,327
177,994
800,892

-

-

2,348,386

3,315,656

Capital contributions
Infrastructure
Trunkage
Federal and state capital grants
Total capital contributions
Transfers out to other funds of the City
of Holland

(5,850,000)

Change in net position before extraordinary items

27,578,545

Extraordinary items

(3,603,908)

Change in net position

23,974,637

2,348,386

3,315,656

29,638,679

231,896,750

62,722,746

38,403,850

333,023,346

41,719,506

$ 362,662,025

Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$ 255,871,387

52

-

$

65,071,132

-

$

(5,850,000)
33,242,587
(3,603,908)

HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Electric
Utility
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to/for employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 105,595,254
(64,229,512)
(6,426,687)
34,939,055

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Insurance refunds
Transfers to other funds of the City of Holland
Capital Grant - State Drinking Water
Revolving Fund - Wyoming portion
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
activities

$

881,636
(5,850,000)
(4,968,364)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Capital contributions received
Proceeds from State Drinking Water Revolving Fund Bond
Federal and state capital grants
Capital Grant - State Drinking Water
Revolving Fund
Proceed from sale of capital assets
Purchase/construction of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

(846,245)
(527,257)
-

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

$

Total

10,687,523
(2,886,172)
(1,522,117)
6,279,234

10,000
-

-

-

8,119

10,000

8,119

$ 127,998,203
(71,922,564)
(9,972,938)
46,102,701

891,636
(5,850,000)
8,119
(4,950,245)

(1,497,328)
(432,078)
72,618
122,207
-

(2,974,689)
(1,139,936)
214,327
122,207
161,756

16,238
700,936

16,238
2,487,948

(23,632,703)

(7,949,172)

(5,348,314)

(36,930,189)

(23,553,539)

(8,123,078)

(6,365,721)

(38,042,338)

377,156
(47,636,198)

93,834
(2,644,271)

58,889
(2,795,579)

529,879
(53,076,048)

49,295,541
2,036,499

5,202,595
2,652,158

3,800,953
1,064,263

58,299,089
5,752,920

985,895

8,863,038

6,334,874

79,814,550

(576,508)

58,927,576
$

11,715,426
(4,806,880)
(2,024,134)
4,884,412

334,346

8,453,651

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Water
Utility

(631,116)
(180,601)
141,709
161,756

1,452,666

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale or maturities of
investment securities
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Wastewater
Utility

67,381,227

14,552,100
$

13,975,592

$

7,320,769

$

88,677,588
continued…
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Electric
Utility

Wastewater
Utility

Water
Utility

Total

Classified on the statement of net position as
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

$

57,915,426
9,465,801

$

11,213,382
2,762,210

$

5,094,204
2,226,565

$

74,223,012
14,454,576

Total cash and cash equivalents

$

67,381,227

$

13,975,592

$

7,320,769

$

88,677,588

$

32,812,512

$

1,870,592

$

3,712,557

$

38,395,661

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
which provided (used) cash:
Receivables
Due from other funds of the City of Holland
Inventories
Prepaid items and other assets
Due from the City of Wyoming
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages payable
Due to other funds of the City of Holland
Deposits
Landfill postclosure liability
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to the
net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources related to the
net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefit obligation
Net cash provided by operating activities

7,516,374

2,481,081

11,752,158

(6,727,147)
519,144
260,119
(217,111)
(821,668)
46,151
(609,925)
97,018
1,046,533
(64,168)
(1,694,608)

94,452
236,342
31,399
28,962
(178,718)
8,350
29,965
(30,444)
(487,842)

618,946
4,179
6,298
23,764
54,892
336,583
8,706
(483,178)
(5,237)
(385,138)

(6,013,749)
759,665
297,816
(164,385)
54,892
(663,803)
63,207
(1,063,138)
97,018
1,046,533
(99,849)
(2,567,588)

2,814,381

810,201

639,632

4,264,214

(40,060)
1,510
$

1,754,703

34,939,055

(11,533)
1,605
$

4,884,412

(9,105)
1,632
$

6,279,234

(60,698)
4,747
$

46,102,701
concluded

Non-cash transactions - June 30, 2017:
The Electric Fund capitalized $2,884,817 of land pollution remediation costs in connection with the closure of the James De
Young ("JDY") power plant. Accounts payable above is net of a non-cash amount of $3,588,610, which included the amount
capitalized related to the closure and $703,794 recognized as a non-cash extraordinary item.
The impaired assets from the JDY power plant that can no longer be used by the Board were revalued to the lower of carrying
value or fair value, resulting in a non-cash extraordinary item of $2,270,956.
The Electric Fund reported a non-cash extraordinary item of $629,158, which was the result of certain spare parts and coal
inventory that had been determined to be obsolete in the amount of $305,218 and $182,015, respectively, and $141,925 as the
remaining coal inventory was revalued to the lower of carrying value or fair value.
The Electric Fund transferred capital assets with a net book value of $83,306 to the Sewer Fund.
Interest in the amount of $3,310,703 in the Electric Fund was capitalized.
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Holland Area Waste Treatment Plant Reserve for Equipment Replacement
Year Ended
June 30,
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993

Interest

Contributions
From Billings
$

124,116
124,116
124,116
124,116
188,364

Other
$

Rate

292,722
14,045
12,555

8.02%
8.21%
7.06%
5.49%
4.21%

Amount
$

85,061
95,519
91,161
64,501
27,927

Reserve
Balance

Improvements
$

446,514
72,939
124,794
538,427
1,161,092

$

1,130,832
1,291,573
1,382,056
1,032,246
100,000

1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

195,180
208,680
224,508
229,350
244,651

2,190
-

3.46%
5.41%
6.24%
6.14%
6.30%

6,640
21,139
36,008
47,244
58,314

18,347
14,662
45,287
145,361
163,917

283,473
498,630
716,049
847,282
986,329

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003

250,903
272,594
278,479
298,340
361,244

77,335
804,159
-

6.00%
5.59%
6.26%
3.64%
2.95%

62,497
44,448
84,190
34,041
43,426

501,228
619,684
427,542
173,806
123,852

875,836
1,377,352
1,312,479
1,471,054
1,751,871

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008

403,722
448,249
518,220
575,848
609,002

-

-1.14%
2.81%
1.90%
4.20%
4.79%

(20,012)
74,659
25,608
78,629
113,392

116,985
1,404,334
117,955
37,557
345,695

2,018,596
1,137,170
1,563,043
2,179,963
2,556,662

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

611,793
659,495
1,260,575
1,261,837
1,083,730

929,543
565,569

1.31%
0.81%
0.23%
0.11%
0.07%

74,514
51,516
17,304
11,247
4,948

91,189
639,343
144,684
747,485
5,681,152

3,151,780
3,223,448
4,356,643
5,811,785
1,784,880

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

1,113,274
1,145,758
1,208,638
1,156,529
1,296,320

621,602
656,077
334,673
18,838,482
-

0.15%
0.17%
0.05%
0.08%
0.31%

7,467
14,261
5,776
8,685
35,435

329,618
898,836
20,456,372
409,348

3,197,605
5,013,701
5,663,952
5,211,276
6,133,683

NOTE: The ending reserve balance does not reflect any open purchase commitments at June 30.
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HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Schedule of Capital Assets

June 30, 2018

Electric
Utility
Land
Construction in progress
Production plant
Distribution/collection system
Transmission
General plant
Total
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

$

21,068,626
1,267,923
317,741,392
108,459,723
15,570,931
37,076,674

Wastewater
Utility
$

501,185,269
(179,024,715)
$ 322,160,554
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260,673
1,423,104
58,988,835
37,555,644
2,249,786
5,271,688

Water
Utility
$

105,749,730
(44,891,143)
$

60,858,587

2,096,962
1,737,990
17,804,813
36,858,241
12,624,244
4,661,399
75,783,649
(29,707,753)

$

46,075,896

Total
$

23,426,261
4,429,017
394,535,040
182,873,608
30,444,961
47,009,761
682,718,648
(253,623,611)

$ 429,095,037

HOLLAND BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS
(Enterprise Funds of the City of Holland, Michigan)
Schedule of Capital Assets

June 30, 2017

Electric
Utility
Land
Construction in progress
Production plant
Distribution/collection system
Transmission
General plant
Total
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

$

21,051,258
203,634,397
116,819,698
105,227,103
15,067,465
16,153,550

Wastewater
Utility
$

477,953,471
(164,656,626)
$ 313,296,845
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260,673
1,889,924
61,788,576
35,462,757
2,249,786
5,156,009

Water
Utility
$

106,807,725
(45,419,269)
$

61,388,456

2,056,865
1,349,989
17,621,478
34,036,275
13,036,266
4,644,723
72,745,596
(28,195,763)

$

44,549,833

Total
$

23,368,796
206,874,310
196,229,752
174,726,135
30,353,517
25,954,282
657,506,792
(238,271,658)

$ 419,235,134
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE
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Rehmann Robson
2330 East Paris Ave. SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49546
Ph: 616.975.4100
Fx: 616.975.4400
rehmann.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
October 12, 2018
Board of Directors
Holland Board of Public Works
Holland, Michigan
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and each major fund of the Holland Board of Public Works (the "Board"), enterprise funds of
the City of Holland, Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 12, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Board’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s internal
control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Board’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
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